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HOW GORHAM
GOT ITS NAME

— X\ —

Edited and reprinted from
4/15/97 Gorham Times article
by Clark Neily

When entering Gorham
from Route 22, this sign
greels passersby.
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be tolon of Gorbam was
one of seven townships
established in 1733 by the
Massachusetts General Court.
These seven townships were
known as the Narragansett
towns. The land in these towns
was awarded to veterans, or
their heirs and survivors, of the
Narragansett war, also known as
King Philip’s War, which took
place between 1675 and 1676.
The war was fought between
colonial forces and a combined
tribe of Indians, including the
Narragansett tribe, led by King
Philip. One of the Plymouth
companies of the colonial forc-
es was commander Captain
John Gorham, whose son was
Shubael Gorham. Shubael was
authorized, in an order from the
Massachusetts General Court
dated July 5, 1736, to assemble
and convene a meeting of all the
grantors and lots in Narragansett
Number Seven to establish con-
ditions for the “settlement of the
Township.” The town derived
its name from John and Shubael
Gorham. The first home built in
the town of Gorham was built by
John Phinney in 1736.
It is interesting to note that
the direct descendants of three
of the original and most active

the Gorham
Township, namely the Phinneys,

proprietors  of

Aldens and Hamblens, are serv-
ing or have recently served as
elected officials of the Town of

Gorham—a lasting influence.

Photo credit Martha T. Harris

A AERIAL VIEW OF GORHAM VILLAGE IN THE 1800°S. -24

Photo courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society

JOHN PHINNEY: BLAZING THE TRAIL (1693-1784)
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Edited and reprinted from 8/25/1995 article by Edna Dickey, based heavily on McLellan’s “History of Gorham™

ohn Phinney was born in
yBarnstable, MA in 1693,
and moved to Falmouth, ME in
1732. He was married to Martha
Coleman and had a total of ten
children.

Once in Maine, John’s goal
was to go to Narragansett # 7
because his grandfather had
fought in King Philip’s War and
was therefore eligible for one
of 30-acre lots in the township
of Gorham. On May 1736, John
and his son, Edmund, paddled
up the Presumpscot River in a
boat and turned into the mouth
of the Little River, which was
considerably deeper and wider
than the brook we know today.
They eventually secured their
boat to a ledge on the south side
of the river, and used an ax to
struggle through bush and woods
to the top of the hill, known
now as Fort Hill. They continued
along toward the south, very near
to our own road, and were well
pleased with what they found on
the southerly slope. They built
their camp near a large basswood
tree, worn down with age, and
Edmund felled that tree, the first
tree in town felled for the pur-
pose of settlement. They contin-
ued clearing and in June planted
crops of corn, peas and watermel-
on. They also erected a log cabin
and made preparations for their
family to move to Gorhamtown.
On August 13,1736 the eighth
Phinney child, Mary, was born.

Photo courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society

Mary Gorham Phinney,
the eldest daughter of
John Phinney, was the first
white child born
in Gorham.

Born August 1739.
Married Mr. James Irish.

B0

She was the first white child to be
born in this wilderness. The family
passed lonely days during the two
years before other settlers arrived
in short succession — the Moshers
and the McLellans.

There were also Indians scat-
tered in the area; their villages
bearing names of the headwaters
in the area — the Ossipees, the
Androscoggins and the Pequokets.
The children played together, and
for the first seven to eight years, as
new families moved into the settle-
ment, all was peaceful.

Today, if you stand on the
bridge over the Little River on
Route 114, and look downstream,
you will see ledges on both sides

that form a miniature canyon.
Some distance beyond this, and
not within sight, is more ledge.
About 20 feet above the current
water level, on private property,
is Phinney Rock, marked “John
Phinney, May 26, 1736.” A small
part of this ledge was placed in
Phinney Park, and dedicated at
the bicentennial observance in
1936. Today, if you look past
Phinney Rock near the cemetery
wall you will see the graves of
John Phinney, his wife and some

of their 10 children. %

PHINNEY ROCK

Greg Cuffey stands
before Phinney Rock
while thumbing through
“Bi-Centennial History
of Gorham, Maine
1736-1936,” compiled
and edited by Walter H.
Johnson, which Cuffey
used to accurately identify
this first historie spot in
the Township of Gorham.
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Photo credit Martha T. Harris

SPECIAL ISSUE
OF THE GORHAM
TIMES

— X\ —

Gorham Times Staff

be editovial staff is dedicat-

ing this entire 24-page issue
issue to Gorham’s 275th anniver-
sary and the Gorham Founders’
Festival. You will find historical
articles and pictures on the town
as well as a complete rundown of
all the activities from May 27-30
planned by festival organizers.

The Gorham Times is proud
to dedicate this issue to the
town’s anniversary because of
just how important history has
been in shaping the personality of
Gorham. Gorham is a close-knit
community that values everything
the town has to offer from The
Village to North Gorham.

This issue is the result of a
lot of hard work by many people
in the past as well as our cur-
rent editorial staff who have pre-
sented pictures and stories of
Gorham’s history. Thanks to all
of the townspeople who have con-
tributed and to the advertisers
who made the publication of this
issue possible.

The town has forged a wonder-
ful 275 years, and we look forward
to the years to come as we con-
tinue to make Gorham one of the
best places to live in Maine. #

Y,

()

Be sure not to miss

the four-page insert
— found in the middle
of this issue — entirely
dedicated to the
Gorham Founders’
Festival being held on
Friday, May 27 through
Monday, May 30.
The insert contains a
schedule of events for
each of the three days,
a map showing where
each event is being
held, information on
the Founders’ Festival
committee, and pho-
tographs from other
town anniversaries.
The insert can easily be
separated from the rest
of the issue, making it
portable to bring to
the festival as an
informative guide.

w
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This statue of an American
Indian used to be in the
town square until it was

stolen and never recovered.
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Early 1900’s,
Gorham Village
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Photos this page courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society

People from Gorham enjoy
a picnic in the 1900’s.
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Historical events courtesy of the Gorham Historical
Society at www.gorhamhistorical.com/chronology
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HISTORICAL EVENTS

AN\
IN THE TOWN OF GORHAM (1736-2011)

Narragansett #7, one of the seven townships granted by the
General Court of Massachusetts to those who fought in the
Narragansett War.

First settlers, Captain John Phinney and son Edmund landed
on southerly side of the Little River.

First child born in Gorham: Mary Gorham Phinney.
Hugh McLellan and Daniel Mosher came to town.

November 24-26 Proprietor’s meeting voted to build a meet-
ing house for the worship of God. Committee appointed to
lay out a road to Sccarappa (Westbrook), and General Court
granted money to erect a fort.

First oxen, first sawmill (John Gorham) at Little River, and
first preacher hired for six months.

Fort built on Fort Hill.
Eighteen families in town.

Meeting house on Fort Hill and grist mill burned by
Indians.

Ten families in town. Some moved away because of threat-
ened by first Indian attacks. Five children born to families in
the fort.

Black tongue disease broke out in fort, 25 persons afflicted,

four died.

Women called upon to defend the fort. Eleven soldiers
provided by General Court to assist in defense.

Bridge over Little River erected. Road cleared for wheels to

Standish.
Jacob Hamblen was first tavern keeper.

Edmund Phinney instructed children in his kitchen. Austin
Alden also a teacher while in fort children were taught by
older boys paid by mink and muskrat skins.

Approved incorporation of town. October 24, 1762.
Population 340 (60-70 families). 20th town in Maine.

Gorham had no glass windows. William McLellan erected the
first two story house.

First Town Meeting, February 18. Forty pounds voted for
schools.

First physician, Dr. Stephen Swett.

Steven Longfellow, great grandfather of Henry Wadsworth
Longfellow, moved from Portland to Gorham when Portland
was burned by the British fleet.

100 families in town. 30 pounds raised for schools.

Population 600, plus 4 slaves, 77 horses, 281 cows, 204 oxen,
506 sheep, and 125 swine.

First high school in White Rock. 40 pounds raised for
schools.

First meeting of Quakers.

First Free Will Baptist church.

Public school system changed from term to full year.
First Parish Meeting House erected.

First district school on Brick Parish lot corner of Church
Street and School Street.

Two tanneries in town.
Population over 2000. 200 pounds raised for schools.

Post office established with mail twice a week. Until this time,
mail came once a week.

First lawyer, John Park Little.

Gorham Academy incorporated. It opened September 9, 1806
with 33 scholars.

The Methodist Society of Gorham, Buxton and Standish incor-
porated.

Elihu Baxter began the practice of medicine.
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1894

1897

1902

1903

Money raised for purchase of fire engine.
The first public library in Gorham located in Nathaniel
Gould’s house on Main St.

Gorham voted in favor of separation from Massachusetts.
Gorham had four senators and 15 representatives in the
Massachusetts Legislature.

Free Meeting House built on College Avenue, now USM Art
Gallery.

Paul Revere Bell installed in First Parish Meeting House
tower. Cast in Canton, MA by Joseph Revere, son of Paul
Revere. Inscription on bell reads Revere-Boston.

Ellen Gould Harmon, a co-founder of the Seventh Day
Adventist Society, born on Fort Hill Road, November 26.

William J. Woodbury purchased from Benjamin Phinney a
piece of land upon erected a palatial mansion so distine-
tive and elaborate that it came to be known asdWoodbury’s
Folly

Gorham Female Seminary dedicated September 13.The fol-
lowing year, this Seminary was separated from the Gorham
Academy.

Free Baptist Meeting House erected at Little Falls.

First North Gorham School House (little red schoolhouse) is
erected.

Work begun on York Cumberland Railroad, Portland to
Rochester. First train 1851.

Monument in memory of those who perished in the Civil War
is dedicated and located in front of the old Town House on
College Avenue (presented to the Town by the Honorable
Toppan Robie .) 386 served and 57 died.

Fort Hill School.

Portland Water District laid first pipes. Toppan Robie donat-
ed clock in First Parish Church steeple.

Gorham Savings Bank opened for business.

High School built on South Street cost $10,000.

Tannery buildings on Main Street burned and was Gorham’s
largest fire.

First train on Portland and Ogdensburg Railroad from
Portland to Sebago Lake ran on September 12.

Little red schoolhouse at North Gorham burned. It was
rumored to be arson due to Prohibition feud.

Gorham Normal School dedicated. First principal William
Corthell.

Honorable Frederick Robie elected Governor of the State of
Maine. Re-elected in 1884

Frederick Robie School built at Little Falls.
Town required to furnish free text books.

Town accepted the offer of library building and Baxter
House.

1894 Gorham Female Seminary building destroyed by
fire.

School districts abolished and Superintendent of Schools
established. School Board to be elected not appointed.

First electric cable cars ran from Westbrook to Gorham
Village. Extended to Little Falls in 1899.

Volunteer Fire Company organized with William T. Libby as
first Fire Chief. First paid fire fightering in 1906.

Hugh McLellanZs The History of Gorham, Maine was pub-
lished.

Vote to buy snow rollers. Rollers first used in 1914.

Electricity came to Gorham.
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HISTORICAL EVENTS

AN\
IN THE TOWN OF GORHAM (1736-2011)

Baxter Memorial Library presented to Town by Honorable
James Phinney Baxter.

Fire destroys Narragansett Block in Gorham Village, Three
days later fire destroyed much of White Rock (Post Office
and store, Martin residence, Railroad Depot, Farmers Union
store, and a grist mill).

First boys” basketball team at Gorham High School. Girls’
team in 1922.

First motorized snow plows.
1923 New chemical fire engine cost $2,000.

First Junior High erected on School Street, later Charlotte
Millett School.

Gorham High School damaged by fire. Rebuilt with 6 class-

rooms and modern toilets.

State Inspector of Schools says Gorham Schools above aver-
age.

New firehouse erected on South Street.

Robie Gym built.

Dedication of the new high school, Charles C. Shaw
School.

Gorham dial telephone system began.
Town meeting approved Sunday movies in Gorham.

Gorham Normal School renamed Gorham State Teachers
College.

Sidney Branson, M.D. began his practice in Gorham. He
retired in 1982.

February, the Great Snow Storm. Turnpike closed; communi-
ties isolated for several days.

Newly organized Congregational Church begun in North
Gorham.

Eldon Shute appointed first Town Manager.

New High School on Morrill Avenue opened.

Last freight trains through Gorham Village. Rails removed in
1961.

New White Rock School opened.
New Village Elementary School opened.
New post office opened on Main Street.

First marked Police Cruiser came into service and Stephen
Wentworth was named first Police Chief.

Retirement of Earle B. Files after 30 years as Postmaster.
Charles Turner and Donald Collelo first full time police offi-
cers.

Gorham State Teachers College renamed Gorham State
College.

Formation of Gorham Rescue Squad.

Beginning of Town Council-Manager form of government after
more than 200 years of Town meetings and Selectmen.

Death of Edgar Carswell, pharmacist; town meeting moderator
for many years.

Gorham State College renamed Gorham State College of the
University of Maine.

June 15, death of Percival P. Baxter; ex-governor and Town
benefactor.

Gorham State College of the University of Maine renamed
University of Maine at Portland and-Gorham.

St. Anne s Roman Catholic Church on lower Main Street
started construction

Death of Charlotte Millett; founder and leader of Gorham
Camp Fire Girls.

North Gorham Library burned and BabbA<s Bridge burned by

arsonists.

1975

1977

1978

1979

1981
1982

1984

1985

1986

1987
1988

1989
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1998

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008
2009
2011

The Rust Farm burned and town participated in a barn raising
for the family.

Brenda Caldwell sworn in as Town Clerk and was first woman

to hold this office.

USM Centennial Convocation; keynote speaker Sr. Harold
Wilson, former Prime Minister of Great Britain.

University of Maine at Portland-Gorham renamed University
of Southern Maine.

Rodney S. Quinn installed as Secretary of State. He served
27 years in Air Force and d on Joint Chiefs of Staff, returned
to Gorham in 1969; served on Gorham Town Council and as
State Representative from Gorham.

Narragansett School opened

Jody Thomas named Gorham’s first policewoman
Constance Goldman named Superintendent of Schools, first
woman to hold this position in Gorham.

Mobil Station, at junction of Main Street and New Portland
Road, replaced by Cumberland Farms.

Burger King opened in part of former IGA building on Main
St.

David Kurz appointed Chief of Police.

Gorham’s South Street Historic District was created by the
Federal Government. (18 homes)

Edna DickeyZEs book Fifty Years of Gorham 1936-1986 was
published.

Maurice Whitten’s book, “The Gunpowder Mills of Gorham,
Maine,” was published.

Bertha Willis wrote “The Way It Was in Gorham” for the
250th anniversary of the town.

Robert Lefebvre appointed as first full-time fire chief.

The first paid full-time rescue personnel (Steve Rines, Kandy
Lefebvre, Paul Conley and Roberta Bernard) were added to
Gorham Rescue.

Gorham House was completed and opened.

Wayne “Pooch” Drown became the first DARE Officer
assigned to the High School.

1995 First issue of the bi-weekly volunteer run Gorham Times

published.

Completion of the high school renovation.

Ronald Shepard appointed Police Chief. He was the first
Chief to work up through the ranks of the GPD.

The Great Ice Storm started with freezing rain falling for 50
hours. Families were without power for up to two weeks.

200th anniversary of the founding of the First Parish
Congregational Church.

New Post Office built on Mechanic Street.

The historic Mosher Farm barn at Mosher’s Corner, burned to
the ground. The house was saved. Fire was arson.

Shaw Park: 12 acres on the Presumpscot River between
Gambo Bridge and the train trestle were donated to the town
by Shaw Brothers Inc.

Shaw Junior High School renovated into the Gorham
Municipal Center.

The old Municipal Center on Main Street became the Gorham
Public Safety building.

Gorham Middle School on Weeks Road opened.

Groundbreaking for the bypass between Route 114 and Route
25.

100th Anniversary of Baxter Memorial Library celebrated.
Bernard P. Rines Bypass officially opened and named.
Gorham celebrates 275th Anniversary.

James Phinney Baxter
(March 23, 1831 — May
8, 1921) was born in the
Baxter House on South

Street in 1831. The home
was originally built on the
current site where stands
the Baxter Memorial
Library. In 1907 Baxter
approached Governor
Robie with a proposal to

fund the building of a public

library in Gorham, with the
condition that his child-
hood home be made into a
museum. The proposal was
accepted, and in September
1908 the Baxter Memorial
Library and Baxter House
Museum opened their
doors. (Adapted from www.bax-

ter-memorial.lib.me.us/museum/)

=0

Image courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society

Built as a dormitory in
1837, the Seminary was
destroyed by fire in 1894.

=0
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THE VILLAGE OF GORHAM GROWS INTO A TOWN
AROUND THE RAILROAD

— N\ —

Excerpted from Gorham Times insert “Gorham Station Historical Menu,” Winter 1995/96

THE BOSTON & MAINE

The railroad from Portland to
Gorham was known first as the
York & Cumberland. In 1865
the line extended to Rochester,
NH and the name was changed
to Portland & Rochester. In 1881
Boston & Maine took over the
stock and in 1900 this line was
completely owned by the Boston
& Maine Railroad Company,
which carried on its business
through Gorham until 1946.

GORHAM NORMAL
SCHOOL

Passenger trains brought stu-
dents to the Gorham Normal
School, a predecessor institution
to University of Southern Maine.
One of the stipulations for the
site for such a school was access
by “water or rail.” Dignitaries
came by rail to observe and par-
ticipate in special celebrations.

A SPECIAL TREAT

After the regular passenger ser-
vice ceased, there was at least
one time when a fleet of passen-
ger trains brought people from
the Sanford-Goodall factory
through Gorham on an excursion
to Old Orchard Beach. Seven
trains, each with 10 coaches,
were filled with employees and
their families.

No. of
people

TR0
Wednesday Feb 5, 1851

was a “great day for
Gorham. This day
passenger cars ran from
Gorham to Portland.
Hundreds and hundreds
crowded the cars to
capacity...most of the
village children took a
ride to Portland and
back. Flags waved,
cannons were fired
and it was a general
holiday.”

JosEan PIERCE’S DIARY

=0

A SAD DEMISE

By 1961 not even freight
trains passed through the village
anymore. It was reported that the
rails were shipped to Liberia and
used to connect Monrovia with
the bush country.

THE BRIDGE
DISAPPEARS

In 1964 the South Street
(Route 114) bridge was removed,
the road was repaired and the
fact that there ever had been a
railroad under that section was
concealed. After more than one
hundred years, the romance of
the railroad in Gorham Village
was no more. 4%

L Original Depot, 1850 24,

Gorbam Population by Decade

Figures courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society
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Photo courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society

HOW WHITE
ROCK GOT ITS
NAME

A\ Y

Except taken from “History of
Gorham, Maine” by
Hugh D. McLellan

e locality knotwn as White

Rock owes its name to a
large boulder, which used to
stand on the hill, in the field
nearly in front of the White Rock
Church. It was a large, white
rock, some ten to twelve feet in
height, with a sloping top, and
formed a conspicuous object for
miles around. Against this rock
the Indians, stopping here to rest
on their way from Sebago Pond
to the salt water, used to build
their fires to cook their meat.
Later, when the white men had
penetrated the forest, and begun
to cull out the larger trees for
masts, there was a “mast camp”
built around the rock. Still later,
when lumbering had become
more of a business, it was the
custom to rest and bait the cattle
on the flat top of the hill, near the
white rock, while their owners
prepared their own food over a
fire kindled in the same old place
against the rock. Captain John
Sturgis, on whose farm the rock
lay, finally decided to destroy it;
but said afterwards that he never
in his life was so sorry for any act
of his, and that the moment the
powder exploded and the stone
flew into pieces he would have
given anything to have been able
to put it back as it was before.
But it was too late, the landmark
was gone forever. %

DEVASTATING
WHITE ROCK
FIRE IN 1916
XX\N—
Except taken from Gorham

Historical Society newsletter,
January 2006

n Ortober 1916 at approxi-

mately 11:30 a.m., a suspi-
cious fire broke out in Marshall
Shackford’s White Rock gen-
eral store, which contained the
post office, and then spread
to the John Martin House, the
barn, store and grain mill. High
winds cause the flames to leap
the road to the storehouse of
Farmers’ Union Inc. and the
Maine Central Railroad Station.
Luckily a passing train blew a
long blast to rouse the neighbors
but with the firefighting equip-
ment so distant and intense
winds, all seven buildings were
completely destroyed in a little
over an hour.

The central portion of the
White Rock community virtual-
ly disappeared in this fire. Only
the rail depot rebuilt sometime
later. The total loss was esti-
mated at $35,000. As a business
community, White Rock never

recovered. &

Photos courtesy of John Phinney

White Rock Depot
=0

Photos courtesy of John Phinney

S Milk Men’s Hour, White Rock, 1909 2%,




Mayp 27, 2011 | Gorhbam Times 275th Commemorative Edition | 5

This Pane Sponsored by

)
Home'Instead

SENIOR CARTEN
Zowf,c’é'f/ye/’wMM

—— 502 MAIN STREET, GORHAM —— WWW.HOMEINSTEAD.COM/321 —— (207) 839-0441 ——

——— Community Profiles ——

Photo courtesy of Gorham Times’ archives

Gorham High School Girls’ Basketball Team, 1919.
Ella Hannaford (Bachelder) back row, second from left.
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ELLA
HANNAFORD
BACHELDER

X\

Edited excerpt from Gorham
Times, March 22, 1996, written
by Peter Bennett

€6 77 was born in Gorham. The

house opposite Barrows
Greenhouse was the Hannaford
home, and the Barrows house
there by the greenhouse was
where my grandparents lived. My
uncle started the first greenhouse
there way back then. It’s wonder-
ful to reflect and see the differ-
ence just in that main street, the
different ones that have moved
away, the new ones that have
come. Still a nice town.”

GORHAM HIGH GIRLS
BASKETBALL, 1919

“In those days Westbrook and
Portland had girls’ basketball
teams; however Pennell Institute
(in Gray) was the only small
school that had one. So two or
three of us got together, and we
began to talk, we wanted to have a
girls’ basketball team in Gorham.
It took quite a lot of persuading
people that we should do it, but
we finally won out. We used to
play in what was originally the
town hall, which is today con-
nected with the college, and we
used to have to go up there, build
our fire, get the place warmed up.
We wore middy blouses and navy
blue bloomers, all dressed alike.
It really and truly was quite an
ordeal.”

MARRIAGE TO HENRY
BACHELDER

Ella graduated in June 1921,
and married Henry Bachelder
in July, moving to North Street.
They were married 65 years. “I
met Henry at a dance. They used
to have the country-dances out in
West Gorham years ago. The hall
has burned since then. We could
only go with my brother Joe and
my sister Carrie. Mom would let
us go up there because it was
nice, clean, a Grange sort of
thing, we would go there when we
were in high school. Henry and 1
would go to a place for dancing
and come to find out they’d have
a prize waltz and we’d go on and
we’d win and get the prize, a
big cake or something like that,
so we'd all get together for that.
We used to do that a lot. T used
to say I would never marry a
man that didn’t dance, because 1
knew very well I'd cheat on him.
I couldn’t give up dancing. But I
married Henry so it worked out
fine.”

GREEN STREET
BUSINESS

From 1950 to 1970, Ella oper-
ated a beauty parlor out of their
home. “That house on Green
Street now is one of the histori-
cal places of Gorham, but you’d
be surprised at the things I did
to that, putting on the beauty
parlor. T had a fireplace in the
beauty parlor; it was very lovely.
We made over every room. Poor
Henry! He’d come home and
I'd have a partition hall down
to make an archway or some-

thing.” %

MAURICE
WHITTEN,
CELEBRATED
MAINE AUTHOR
AND TEACHER

X\

Abigail Cuffey, Reprinted from
Gorham Times, 08/14/1998

Photo credit Martha T. Harris

Maurice Whitten

R0

[ober of all things scientific
in nature, Maurice Whitten
is a true Mainer. His interest
in saving and glorifying a small
town’s historic features are well
known not only in Maine, but all
over the country. His book, “The
Gunpowder Mills of Maine,” is
currently in its second printing
and is available in libraries and
chains, such as Target, state-
wide. In an age when people
look to build new facilities,
Whitten’s passion is to help pre-
serve the old. He believes that
they tell a story a story of how
we got to be where we are today.
This celebrated author was
born in Providence, RI but
spent the majority of his child-
hood in Maine. He moved to
Gorham in 1955.

He received a chemistry
degree from Colby College and a
master’s degree in teaching sci-
ence from Columbia University.
After acquiring his Ph.D. in
chemistry at Ohio State, he
began his teaching career where
he taught science at Lewiston
High School for seven years.

Whitten’s  contributions to
Gorham begin with his legacy
at the Gorham State Teacher’s
College (now USM) where he
began teaching in 1955, and
retired from there in 1983.
While teaching chemistry,
Whitten discovered that he was

also intrigued by the history of
science. His passion became
not just to teach science, but
to learn how it was created. He
found his answer through the
gunpowder mills.
Whitten’s

Gorham’s

interest  in
first
sparked when he took a tour

history was

of Gorham and the tour guide
briefly stopped down Gambo
Road and pointed out the mill.
In the foreword of his book “The
Gunpowder Mills of Gorham,
Maine,” the tour guide is quoted
as saying “There was an old
gunpowder mill somewhere in
this area, but I don’t know much
about it.” Whitten decided to
find out more.

Take a walk down Gambo
Road and you’ll be sent back
in time to a place where his-
tory was made. Behind mod-
ern developments and a dusty
gravel pit, you will find rushing
streams of water, pathways and
foundations of mills that have
remained there since 1872 when
the first mill was built.

Whitten’s interest was stimu-
lated by how the mills moved and
what went into the gunpowder
(sulfur, potassium nitrate and
charcoal). His curiosity includ-
ed: the civil war; raw materi-
als and where they come from;
the composition of gunpowder;
explosions that occurred while
producing; financial problems;
sales; as well as other compa-
nies in comparison.

In Maurice’s book, you can
find the answer to the question:
What mill supplied about 25
percent of the gunpowder used
by the Union during the civil
war. The answer is Gorham’s
Gambo Mill.

While flipping through his
book you can see why Gorham
was such a good place for a
mill. The town had all the char-
coal and water power needed
to employ 45 people—a lot
in the 1860s. The gunpowder
mill eventually closed down in
1905 when it was sold to Laflin
and Rand Company. This was
a result of mills shutting down
statewide due to the decreased
need for gunpowder for military
purposing (the war was long
over) and an increased need for
blasting powder for the produc-
tion of new railroads, etc.

Today, Whitten is still an
active member of the Gorham
Historical Society and continues
to focus on another hot topic

LILLIAN
HAMBLEN
GRANT

X\

Phil Bartlett
(Excerpt reprinted from Gorham
Times, 12/14/2001)

illian Hamblen Grant was
born in 1914, and first
lived in a house on the corner
of South Street and the “Dump
Road.” Her family moved to the
old Hamblen farm, which came
into the family in 1787. She
recalls as a child going down
to the cellar to retrieve cream
and butter, where it was kept
at night because it was cool.
Electricity did not make it to
that part of Gorham until 1929.
Grant’s mother used to make
butter and then “take it around
to make pin money. “When she
was old enough to drive, Grant
took her mother around in the
truck to deliver the butter. Her
mother never drove, though she
was good at harnessing horses.
Grant did not start school
until she was seven. She was
held back until her younger
brother, Almery, was ready
to start school too. Almery
bragged, “Lin can lick any boy
up there!” Grant sat in the back
row of her first-grade class at
Frederick Robie School with two
other Lillians — Lillian King
and Lillian Irish. She recalls

CoNTINUED ON PAcE 23

these days—the environment.
He has been a supporter of
all things historic in Gorham,
especially preserving the Shaw
Middle School and any other
remnant of what Gorham used
to be.

His hobbies include travel-
ing to places such as the British
Isles and Italy. When asked
what advice he has for the
younger generation who want to
get involved with the history of
science, he said: “Our greatest
learning tool is just to ask. Ask
your elders questions, and if
you listen, you just might learn
about what has been there all
along.”

Thanks to an interest few
hold today, Whitten continues to
defy a concern for the new and
instead relishes in the old. &
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17 Rolls of Packing Tape.

224 Boxes.
2 Happy New Homeownetrs.

They're happy because they chose a CU Promise loan with a guaranteed same-day loan
decision, a guaranteed closing date, and guaranteed local servicing.

877.505.9555
cupromise.com

PROMISE

Home Loans for Maine

The CU Promise loan is available through select Maine credit unions and CUSO

@ Mortgage Corp. If you live in Maine, you are eligible to apply. For more details

CUSO
co moveme : - )
LENDER about the CU Promise loan and our guarantees, please call or visit us online.

Mortgage Corp.

Gorham Primary Care PC
130 Main Street

Gorham, ME 04038

Telephone 207-839-5551
Adult Primary Care

New Patients Welcome

Accepting: MaineCare, Medicare, Etc.
Discount available for cash at time of service

Office Hours: Monday-Friday 9 a.m.-5 p.m.

Year Round Property Maintenance

* Mowing

+ Spring Clean-up H

* Trimming & Pruning JUStm Hayden
+ Shrub Removal/Planting 207-71 2-5554

+ Edging & Mulching
+ General Labor
www.acyardservices.com

Commercial & Residential Fully Insured
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Photo credit Martha T. Harris

The White Rock School, serving students from kindergarten through second
grade, opened in November 1962 and is scheduled to close in June 2011.
A closing ceremony will be held on June 2 from 5-7 p.m. with a BBQ,
nature walk, obstacle course, hula-hoop, and many more fun activities.

Rain date is June 3. Please call 222-1050 to RSVP.

Photo courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society
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Class of 1898

Class of 1909
The new “Old Robie School of Little Falls,”

is a colonial revival classic that sits on top of
the hill on Rt. 202, just south of the round-
about and Sweets N Eats. It was first built in
1888, and existed as The Frederick Robie
School, after the Honorable Frederick Robie,

the twice-elected Governor of Maine.

Photo courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society

Photo credit Martha T. Harris

Frederick Robie School, located
near the intersection of Routes 202
and 237, held classes through ninth
grade. The school is currently avail-
able through the Gorham Recreational
Department on weekends and eve-
nings for community events, wed-
ding receptions and birthday parties.
The school, which was completely
rehabilitated by PTA volunteers,

is currently available through the
Gorham Recreational Department on
weekends and evenings for commu-
nity events, wedding receptions and
birthday parties.

Gorham High School, 1913 school play

.. Children sit at desks at
£ the Gorham High School
assembly room in 1938.

Photo courtesy of Gorham High School

Photo courtesy of Gorham High School Library

The Village Elementary
School was built in 1963,
replacing the Charlotte
Millett School built in 1924
and The Frederick Robie
School built in 1888.

The Shaw School was
opened in September 1939
as a three-year high school,

which started with about
135 students.

The old high school, used
between 1868 and 1939,
was located beside the cur-
rent Robie Gym. The school
was built for about $10,000.
It was later used to house fire
trucks. Robie Gym served
for many years as the high
school gymnasium.

Gorham’s newest elemen-
tary school, Great Falls, is
currently under construc-
tion and is scheduled to
be complete in July 2011.
Starting in September
2011, Gorham’s three
elementary schools will each
serve students from kinder-

garten through fifth grade.

This Half Page Sponsored by
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TUKRKADO

Fmify Martisl Arts and Fitney Cenber

—— 90 BRIDGE ST. STE 205, WESTBROOK —— WWW.JUKADOUSA.COM —— (207) 854-9408 ——

— Sports ——

Clockwise from top, left:

Gorham High School Football team,
1911

Gorham High School Boys’
Basketball team, 1927

Gorham High School Girls’
Basketball team, 1929

Gorham High Undefeated Baseball
Team won 38 consecutive games

in 1938

Gorham High School Basketball
team, 1920

All photos courtesy of the Gorham High School Library
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GAMBO
POWDER MILLS

X\

Glenn Parkinson (Excerpt

reprinted from Gorham Times,
11/03/1995)

id pou knotw that one quar-
%1’21‘ of the gunpowder used
during the Civil War was made
at the Gambo Gunpowder Mills
site in Gorham?

In 1992, Shaw Brothers
donated the site to the Gorham
Land Trust. “The Gambo area
is one of Gorham’s most impor-
tant historical areas,” said Betsy
Shevenell, then president of the
Presumpscot Regional Land
Trust (formerly named Gorham
Land Trust). “Not only is it the
site of the gunpowder mills but
it also includes part of the old
Cumberland Oxford Canal,” con-
tinued Shevenell.

After the Land Trust was
given the land, work crews were

organized to clear brush from
the paths. Shevenell added,

The paths are now open to the

public and are a wonderful
place to walk.”

The bridge spanning the
Presumpscot River is no longer
open and the river above the
dam is one of Gorham’s favorite
swimming holes. On a hot sum-
mer day kids, adults and dogs
can be found enjoying the cool
waters or just hanging out.

Upriver from the bridge
is a small island where char-
coal, used in the making of
gunpowder, was made. Wood

— Pistoric Sites ——

was packed into metal barrels,
sealed and then baked. The
island site reduced the chances
of a dangerous explosion being
ignited by the charcoal making.
The submerged old wood dam
is sometimes visible coming off
the north side of the island and
continuing under the current
bridge. Granite abutments for
the old bridge to the island are
also still visible

A path from the parking area
leads down to the granite foun-
dations of the mills. The first
foundation is circular, the oth-
ers are all square. The water
wheel in this first mill, used to
power the grinding wheels, was
laid flat in the foundation. A
raised earth trail leading past
the mills is the actual path the
workers used, although then
it was a wooden boardwalk.
Workers wore felt slippers
and pushed wooden wheelbar-
rows made with copper nails.
The barrows had felt covered
wheels. Iron nails in a pair
of boots or on a wheelbarrow

could cause a spark that could
ignite a deadly explosion.

The individual mills were
spaced 500 feet apart to prevent
one explosion from damaging too
much of the production. On the
right side of the path is the race-
way that carried water to power
the mills. The Land Trust prop-
erty ends just past the fourth mill.

The canal was first proposed
in 1791, but due to difficulty in
raising money, was not opened
until 1830. The building of the
canal was a major engineering
feat and included a 100-foot
aqueduct, a bridge for boats,
over the Little River near the
Land Trust St. Pierre property.

The canal opened up the
interior of Cumberland and
Oxford counties to shipments of
produce. Lumber, cord wood,
farm products and of course
gunpowder, were shipped out.
Furniture, manufactured goods
and liquor were shipped in. At
its peak, 150 canal boats used
the waterway.

As you walk along the tow-

path, the canal is to your left.
Horses walked the same path
towing boats. Two of the 27
locks needed to raise boats
as they traveled inland from
the ocean to Long Lake were
located on this section of the
canal. On occasion, explosions
at the gunpowder mills dam-
aged the towpath. When the
boats reached open water in
Sebago, they raised sails to tra-
verse the lake.

Horses towing barges loaded
with lumber and workers in felt
slippers pushing wheelbarrows
on wooden boardwalks are part
of Gorham’s history. Today, the
trails are quiet. Granite foun-
dations sit in mute acknowl-
edgment of the tension of the
Civil War. Quiet beauty and
the sense of stories untold have
replaced the bustle of years
past. More information can be
found in Maurice Whitten’s
book “The Gunpowder Mills of
Gorham” or by contacting the
Land Trust at www.prlt.org or
prlandtrust@yahoo.com. %
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NAME THAT
HILL

X\

Lennie Cross (Excerpt

reprinted from Gorham Times,
08/01/1997)

an pou name the Gorbam

hill that was named for a
well-placed bribe?

Fort Hill Road, first known as
King Street, was once the main
highway for all traffic traveling
east through Standish from New
Hampshire—particularly Coos
County. The route followed an
old Indian trail to the seashore,
where Native Americans wisely
spent summers on the coast.
The rolling hills from Sebago
Lake were difficult for oxen and
horse teams when the roads were
dry and hard packed; they were
nearly impossible in the mud
and snow.

Around 1820 serious discus-
sion began about a new route
from Standish to Gorham. The
Court of Massachusetts granted
a road, and then appointed a

committee to examine the pos-
sibilities and choose the best
route. Fort Hill, as the exist-
ing route, was to be examined
first. While the road commit-
tee was engaged in surveying
what was, a group of people
from Gorham Village and West
Gorham began preparing what
they hoped would be. “With
oxen, ploughs, shovels, and
crowbars” they began to alter
the slope of a hill to better their
chances of a new route. The
industrious citizens accom-
plished a great deal in the time
allowed to survey King Street.
On the day the road com-
mittee was to inspect the most
direct route from West Gorham
to Gorham Village. A crowd
gathered with the intention
of joining the committee in
their survey. One member of
the group suggested they fill
a flask with the best spirits of
a certain type acquired from
the village store. Armed with a
quart of liquid refreshment, the
villagers set forth. Reaching the
brook at the base of their newly
sculpted hill, they paused and
placed the flask in the cooling

waters then continued on to
West Gorham.

The day was warm for the
stout chairman and soon he was
perspiring greatly. Following
his compass and noting his
progress, he reached the brook
where it was decided a rest
was in order. One of the vil-
lagers jokingly suggested a nip
would be a welcome addition to
the cool stream water, and the
chairman heartily agreed, but
lamented the lack of opportu-
nity to procure such spirits. A
lad then produced the hidden
flask amid much rejoicing. The
flask was shared and enjoyed
so much by the chairman that
he announced: “I want to name
this brook and Providence
has provided it. I will call it
‘Brandybrook.”™

Thus, the hill so carefully
sculpted by the forward think-
ing group became Brandybrook
Hill, and the road path laid
out by the surveyor passed
over the spot where the bran-
dy had cooled. Next time you
drive on Route 25, check the
brook. Who knows what may be
beneath the waters. &

FORT HILL
— XX\ —

Lennie Cross, adapted from
“History of Gorham, Maine” by
Hugh D. McLellan

ort Bill gets its name from
fa fortification that was
erected in 1744 on the high-
est land in the town on thirty-
acre lot No. 2 on the original
map of Gorhamtown. At a meet-
ing held on the 28th of August
in 1744, the old proprietors of
Gorhamtown or Narragansett No.
7 decided to build a fort of hewn
timber in an oblong square about
50 feet long. This fort was to
be surrounded by a palisade of
heavy timber set in the ground.
The timbers were 15 feet long
with three feet set into the ground
and 12 feet standing. There were
watchtowers built at two diagonal
corners with mounted cannons to
be used as defense against hostile
Indians, and to warn neighboring
towns of attack. Inhabitants used
the southeast tower as a place of
worship. The Indians burned the
meetinghouse in 1747.

Photo credit Suzie Phillips

The Fort Hill
dedication plaque

=0

The last record of any repairs
made to the fort was in 1757.
March 25, 1747 at the house
of Joshua Freeman of Falmouth
it was voted to pay Hugh
McLellan one shilling and four
pence, per foot for stockad-
ing to repair where walls had
weakened. The timber of choice
was stripped spruce, pine, or
hemlock. The work was to be
completed by April 15,1757.

The fort was never tested
by a large force of Indians.
Small bands of Indians forced
settlers to live at the fort for
long periods of time (In 1746
there were six families living
at the fort) but no large scale
attacks threatened the bullet-
proof design. %
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GORHAM’S
TANNERIES

A\ Y

Lennie Cross (Except reprinted
from Gorham Times 11/17/1994)

5‘% is belicbed that the first
tanners in Gorham were
William and John Cotton.
William’s 30 acres were on the
road above Fort Hill. He tanned
cowhides and calfskins for his
neighbors. Other tanners listed
in the tax roles were captain
Oliver Hunt (1794) and Joseph
Cressey (1805). Later there was a
tannery, run by John Wilson and
William Hasty, on the east side
of School Street, next to First
Parish Church (Ayers property),
and another run by Humphrey
Pike (1828).
Around 1800,
began to replace lumbering

agriculture

as the primary local industry.
Farmers were no longer merely
subsisting, but were produc-

— Pistorical Articles ——

D THERE WERE AT LEAST SIX TANNERIES IN GORHAM FROM 1794 10 1828, 24

ing more than their family’s
needs. This change in lifestyle
fueled a growth in specialized
industries. Although there was
no local slaughterhouse, hides
could be acquired locally.
Moses Clark and his son,
John, operated a tannery from
1792 to 1824 on Main Street
(currently Village Mall.) In
1828 Captain James Irish built
a larger tannery on Mechanic
Street, which later converted
to a corn-packing factory.
It burned in 1871. In 1832,
Stephen Hinckley purchased

the yards and buildings of
Moses and John Clark and
operated it until fire engulfed
the building in 1869 — the larg-
est fire in Gorham’s history.
The entire operation (except
the office, Hinckley House and
stable) was leveled in several
fires during November. Rebuilt
by the Hinckley’s, the tannery’s
peak employment was 50 to
60 workers. In the 1920s, this
tannery was the Ireson Tanning
Company, a Massachusetts
firm, employing about 20 work-
ers. Its whistle signaled the

start of work, lunch, break, and
quitting time, along with fire
calls and no school.

The tannery had an under-
ground duct of cut rock that
channeled water to the tan-
nery from the railroad brook
pond (currently where Sebago
Brewing Company is) and from
a pond east of South Street (one
block south of Green Street).
A manhole located at the cor-
ner of the tannery property
allowed the curious to look at
the underground stream. The
tannery was powered by coal-

Photo courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society

generated steam. The earlier
machine shop had been pow-
ered by a large undershot water
wheel with water from a pond at
Fairy Glen (behind the current
Burger King).

In the main building, equip-
ment was suspended from two
40-foot-long,  one-foot-thick
beams supported on eight huge
ash ship’s knees. Pooling tan-
nic acid on the floor would have
been highly corrosive to metal
machine parts, so nothing sat
directly on the floor.

When the railroad connect-
ed Gorham to Portsmouth and
Boston in 1875, hides were
no longer simply regionally
acquired, but came from South
America via the railroad. These
much thicker hides were used
for belts. Hides were tanned
and finished and shipped to
Bass Shoe and points south.
The Ireson Tannery closed in
1932 when the closing of the
railroad made receiving sup-
plies and shipping finished
products too costly. &%
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FORT HILL-
HALLOWED
GROUND

X\

Edna Dickey (Excerpt
reprinted from Gorham Times,
03/08/1996)

eginning with the first set-
%ﬂm‘ﬁ and reaching into the
twentieth century, the command-
ing elevation of Fort Hill has
served well the needs of our
residents. Today, the panoramic
view draws people like a magnet,
but very early in Gorham’s his-
tory and even in our own century,
it was a strategic spot for observ-
ing the enemy.

In the first years after settle-
ment, the colonists in Gorham
found the Indians to be friendly
and helpful. When hostilities
between the French and British
arose, the native population’s
earlier friendliness changed to
enmity. The General Court at
Massachusetts took measures for
the defense of its Maine settle-
ments by selecting six sites for
forts, including one in Gorham.

The Fort was inhab-
ited for four vyears.
According to McLellan’s
records, by 1744 there
were 10 families in the
colony and only four had
not entered the Fort by
1746. Life in the Fort
was one of privation,
tension, and courage.

There were at least two
periods of severe, contagious
illness and food was often
scarce or nonexistent. In the
summer, the men struggled to
raise as much food as possible.
In the winter, when snows were
deep, some families went home
until the following spring. At
harvest time, the men often
worked together harvesting
each property while a child
stood guard on a stump watch-
ing for Indians.

Fort Hill played a strategic
defense role again 200 years
later, during World War II. A
two-story tower was erected
on the hill in order to spot
the approach of enemy planes.
Windows on all four sides made
it possible to watch all airways
and determine whether friend
or foe was approaching. Field
glasses aided the observers and

a telephone connected the tower
with headquarters, where mes-
sages of enemy approach could
be relayed to Fort Williams.
This look-out was manned
24 hours a day, by men and
women working in shifts. High
school students took turns too.
Because of the inaccessibility
of Fort Hill to the volunteers
due to gas rationing, the tower
was moved to a little rise of
land near the current Village
School at some point during the
war. Later it was purchased by
members of the Robie family
and moved a few hundred feet
to its present location beside
the garage of the Robie home
on Robie Street, where it served
as a shed and storage area.

Today, the plot of land we
know as Fort Hill has become
a public park with markers tell-
ing of our rich heritage. %

NEW PORTLAND
ROAD

XN\ —

Tony Rimkunas (Excerpt

reprinted from Gorham Times,
10/18/2002)

ﬁem Portland Road bas
perbaps perhaps the odd-
est name of any road in Gorham.
First, it was built over 200 years
ago. Second, while the road does
go in the general direction of
Portland, it only goes as far as
Westbrook. In Westbrook, of
course, the road is known as New
Gorham Road.

Construction of New Portland
Road began in 1818 or 1819.
By August of 1818 the road was
laid out from the corner where
the Cumberland Farms and Mr.
Bagel now stand, to Main Street
in Westbrook. Gorham paid four-
teen landowners a total of $765
for the right to build the road
over their land. Westbrook paid
six landowners $151.

How New Portland Road got
its name remains a mystery. In
the 1871 Atlas of Cumberland

County, the road is marked as

Portland Street in Gorham and
Gorham Road in Westbrook. At
some point between 1904 and
1908 Gorham Road became New
Portland Road. Portland Street
in Gorham likely changed its
name about the same time. What
caused a road that was at least
80 years old to suddenly become
new? The answer may be lost in
history. It could be that some-
thing happened to the road that
significantly changed it. Paving
wasn’t very common back then,
but maybe it could have been
widened or improved somehow.
The best clue is a hand drawn
map at the Gorham Historical
Society, probably from 1892.
This map marks the road as
“New Road.” This might show
that people in Gorham were
calling the road New Road even
though the official name was
Portland Street. This nickname
could have been more common
than the official name. If some-
thing similar was true for New
Portland Road, then it must be
that at some point somebody
decided it was silly to have a
road called one name on all
the maps but that everybody
called something else, so the
two names were merged into

New Portland Road. %
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Gorham Business & Civic Exchange
10th Annual Fore-a-Scholarship Golf Scramble

and Barbecue
Proceeds will provide scholarships for two
Gorham High School seniors.

Registration is now open!

This coupon may not be combined with any other GHOP promotions.

This year’s 18-hole golf scramble and barbecue will take place

www.gorhamhouseofpizza.com on Friday, June 24th at the Gorham Country Club.

Prizes will be awarded for:
e Low Gross

Gliddon Owens Design + Low Net
W}"kﬁf’(M VV(/_(.— f[ﬂ(/)" * Low Net Co-Ed (Team must have 2 women and 2 men.)

* Closest to the Pin
Strategy and Implementation * $25,000 Hole-in-One Sponsored by

for Print, Web, and Social Media Needs CE Carilfinsurance Agency
Design, layout, production of the Gorham Times

Call Jeannine at (207) 807-6985 for more information. Interested in playing? Would you like to be a platinum, gold,

NI www.gliddonowens.com
Wyman’s

AUTO BODY

Joe Wyman has been doing auto body and collision work for over
50 years and at the same Gorham location for over 35 years.

or hole sponsor? Call David Willis at 839-3390 for more
information and/or to register.

We Work with All
Insurance Companies

[-Car Certified » ASE Certified « Major Collision ¢ All vehicle types
Free Pick-up and Deliveries within a 15-mile Radius. Free loaner cars.
ALL WORK WARRANTIED

201 New Portland Rd, Gorham, ME ¢ Ph: 839-6401 Fax: 839-2418 Email: wymanautoinc@yahoo.com
Mon—Fri 8-5, Sat 9-12, Sun Closed * www.wymansauto.com

FREE

SUNGLASSES

With complete eye exam and purchase of DANA
prescription eyeglasses or contact lenses. =~ BUCKMAN

Offer applies to non-prescripion sunglasses, GUESS
Add prescription lenses for 1/2 price.
Offer good while
supplies last.

EYE CARE & EYE WEAR
CENTER
Eric T. Roush, O.D. Of Maine

20 MECHANIC ST, GORHAM (next to Hannafords)  839-3617
HOURS: Tues. - Fri. 8-5:30/Sat. 8-12
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The Gorham Town Fair Committee
was approved at the January 4, 2011 Gorham

Town Council Meeting in order for the town to

mark the 275th anniversary of its founding. The

Committee’s first meeting was held on January 19, during
which the name and date of the event were decided. For over
four months, the Committee worked diligently to fundraise

in order to plan the events and entertainment. The fruit of our

labor resulted in a weekend packed with events for the entire family.

The committee consisted of a variety of townspeople, who brought various
perspectives and ideas on what the festival should include. For this year, it was
our goal to make this a memorable event for the town by acknowledging Gorham’s
275th. We also wanted to provide a singular venue that promotes fundraising for

Gorham’s school boosters and local non profits.

On behalf of the Gorham Town Fair Committee, the Gorham Times,
our sponsors, and all those responsible in putting this together,
enjoy the fair and help us celebrate a truly

remarkable milestone — 275 years of

Gorham history.

Yith sincerest thanks
and appreciation,
Philip T. Gagnon Jr.

Committee Chair 250th Parade

=0

Photos courtesy of the Phillips Family

Paul and
Barbara Neal

Photo credit Steve Neal
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Hot air balloons flew high
above the 250th celebration of
Gorham’s founding.

Photos courtesy of the Neal Family

GORHAM CELEBRATES
275 YEARS WITH GORHAM
FOUNDERS’ FESTIVAL

X\

Dede Perkins

@urbam bas a proud history
of celebrating town mile-
stones. On June 10, 1836, town
citizens commemorated the 100
years that had passed since
John and Edmund Phinney first
stepped onto the southerly bank
of the Little River to become
the first white men to settle

in Gorham. Since then, com-
memorative celebrations have
been held in 1936, 1964, 1976,
and 1986. This year’s Gorham
Founders’ Festival, which will
take place over Memorial Day
Weekend, May 27 — 30, 2011,
marks and celebrates 275 years
of Gorham history.

The Gorham Founders’
Festival kicks off at 4 p.m. on
Friday May 27th with amuse-
ment rides at Narragansett
School. Fiddle Jam will play at
5 p.m. followed by the Don Roy
Trio at 6:30 p.m. Saturday’s
opening ceremonies begin at 9
a.m. followed by a concert by
the Gorham Chamber Singers at
10 a.m. Amusement rides will
be open all day on Saturday,
from 10 a.m. - 9 p.m.

Besides entertainment
scheduled throughout the
weekend, there will be a live
benefit auction sponsored
by the Gorham Historical
Society at 11:30 a.m. on
Saturday as well as a silent
auction by the class of 2012.
Both auctions will take place
behind the Gorham Founders’
Festival Information Booth at
Narragansett. Historical bus
tours will depart at 2 p.m. from
St. Anne’s Church on both
Saturday and Sunday. The
Gorham Fire Fighters’ Chicken

Dinner will take place at 4:30
p-m. on Saturday followed by
Pete Kilpatrick at 5 p.m. and
Motor Booty Affair from 7 to
9 p.m. Saturday’s celebration
culminates with fireworks at
Narragansett at 9 p.m.

On Sunday, the Gorham
Taste Walk will run from 11
a.m. to 2 p.m. On the day of the
festival, Taste Walk maps will
be available at participating
locations, including Hannaford,
and in front of the Baxter
Memorial Library. The Granite
State Zoo will be at Narragansett
from 10 a.m. to 4 p.m. A histori-
cal walking tour will depart from
the Hannaford flagpole at 2 p.m.
Amusement rides reopen on
Sunday at noon.

To honor and thank our
local veterans, the Gorham
Founders’ Festival will con-
clude with the annual Memorial
Day Parade on Monday, May
30. Community organizations,
churches, clubs, neighborhood
groups, businesses, school
groups, sports clubs and anyone
else who wants to take part
will meet at Village School to
line up at 10 a.m. The parade
will step off at 11 a.m. onto
Lincoln Street then right onto
South Street. The parade will
pause for a brief wreath laying
and salute at the memorials at
Phinney Park then will pro-
ceed down Main Street. The
Memorial Day Parade will end
with a ceremony at the Eastern
Cemetery.

For more information, please
visit www.gorhamfoundersfesti-
val.com. %

Bring pour canned food items to the Gorham Founders’ Festival.
Collected items will be donated to the Gorham Jfood Pantry.

<2
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Conqratulations Gorham —

Check out the Gorham FFounders’ (&W
estival Looth at the FFestibal!
¥ Liooth at the F Gorham Taste
We will have items for sale including com- YWalk Returnsg
memorative postcards with historical town Sunday 5/29

photos, and available through pre-ordering
will be Gorham Longaberger baskets and llam. to2pm.

“Gorham 1986-2011,” a book compiled by
Photo courtesy of the Gorham

Founders’ Festival Committee Abbot Mosher and Suzie Phillips. Take a walk through

. the village of Gorham
N and sample special
) ple sp

items from restaurants,

coffee shops and the
like. Pick up your map
at any location includ-
ing Gorham House of
Pizza, University of
Southern Maine, St.
Joe’s Coffee, Thatchers,
Amatos, Gorham Grind,
Mr. Bagel, Hannaford,
Lucky Thai, Sebago
Brewing Company or
Salty Dog Cafe. Maps
are $5 with a maximum
of only $15 per family.
Vote for your favorite!
Sponsored by Casco
Federal Credit Union.

w

Photos courtesy of the Neal Family

250th anniversary photo — Back row: Wright Faatz, Linda
Treworgy Faatz, John Treworgy, Martha Treworgy Harris,
Phyllis and Stubby Treworgy
Front row: Sarah Treworgy, Hannah Treworgy,
Robyn Pettengill, Jennifer Pettengill and Nathan Faatz

B0

MAP CREATED BY FouwbpERS'’

439 Ossipee Trail, Gorham, ME 587 Main St, Gorham, ME
207-839-3332 207-839-2244

Congratulations Gorham!
A qreat place to libe and work

OTMOTORSALES.COM

Complete auto service facility _
over 100 quality pre-owned vehicles to choose from Mon.—Sat 10-5 ¢ 42 Main Street, Gorham

Lets's get you approved today!! bookwormrocks@myfairpoint.net 839-BOOK(2665)
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On Pour 275th Amniversary

Photos courtesy of the Neal Family

250th anniversary photo —

- Above: Willis Farm Fire
Department: In the front seat are
Roberta and Steve Willis with their
daughter Lydia. From left to right in
the back of the fire truck are Dave
Nichols, Jan Willis, Andy Wescott,
and Troy Willis. Sitting directly
behind Troy is Paul Willis with son
David Willis.

250th anniversary photo —
Right: At the 250th celebration are
longtime Gorham residents: Arnold
Calderwood, Jack Perkins, Edna
Dickey, and Paul and David Willis.

R0

Photo courtesy of the Willis Family

ESTI VAL

Whether it’s big or small, we can do it.

Happy 275th Anniversary, Gorham!

839-8393
2 Railroad Ave. * Gorham ME 04038
7:30 am - 5:30 pm Mon through Fri
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Gorham Founders’ festival Tours

Reservations are suggested. Call the Gorham

@Dl‘bam qu und Brg’ :ﬂ-’egtlh al Recreational Department, 222-1630.

onsors
%p 5 Gorham Historical Long Bus Tour

PLATINUM SPONSORSHIP $3,000-+ 2 pm Sat. & Sun. (aprox. 3 hours)

Shaw Brothers Board bus behind St. Anne’s on Main Street
Moody’s Collision Center Travel on Main Street. Turn right on Fort Hill Road. Left
Marcia Parkhurst Trust on College Ave. Reverse and head north on Fort Hill
Road. Right on Wescott Road thru White Rock. Stop at
GOLD SPONSORSHIP $1,000-$2,999 Merrifield Farm for a brief talk on the Indurated Fibre
Co. Proceed to North Gorham for a stop at the former Levi
Hamnaford Brothers Chent S tbehule Hall School, now a church. View amazlzi)ng photographs of

Gorham Savings Bank
Casco Federal Credit Union

early Great Falls industries. Leave North Gorham travel-
ing south on route 237.South on route 202.Left on Queen

Dana Estes Trust Friday, May 27 (Evening) i : )
Amusement Rides 4-9 p.m. StreetRight on route 2377 to Mosher Corner. Right on Main
SILVER SPONSORSHIP $500-$999 Fiddle Jam 5-6:30p.m. Strect. back to St Anne’s
Grondin Don Roy Trio 0:30-8 p.m. Gorham Historical Short Bus Tour
Gorham Sand & Gravel 2 pm Sat. & Sun. (approx. 1 hour)
Great Falls Builders Saturday, May 28 T P : | APDrO .
. . our to encompass Village area history 100 to
KeyBank Opening Ceremonies 9 a.m. 150
Gorham Chamber Singers 10 a.m. years ago
BRONZE SPONSORSHIP $250-$499 Arr}usen}ent Ri§e§ 10 a.m.-9 p.m. Board bus behind St. Anne’s on Main Street.Travel on
21st Century Motors Ph%l Sm%th Mag%c%an 11-11:30 a.m. Main Street pasF Eastern Ct.emetery. .
Norway Savings IP}HI Smith .MagICI'an 3-3:30 p.m. Left on Mechanlc: Street. Blght on Rallroa.d Ave. Left
Community Pharmacy ive Benefit Auction o . 11:30 a.m. on Elm Street. Right on LIIICOI.H Street. Right on South
Dodge Oil Sponsored by Gor h‘.lm Historical Society Street. Left on College Ave. Right at entrance to USM,
Ocean Community Federal Credit Union Wayne From Maine 12 p.m. Right at Fort Hill Road/McLellan House. Fort Hill taking
S Party Palooga Show 1:45-2:30 p.m. a left on Main Street to St.Ann’s parking lot.
Philips Body Shop g & : .30-3: b °e b §
; Party Palooga Balloon Animals 2:30-3:30 p.m.
Poland Spring Historical Tours* 2 p.m. Gorham Historical Walking Tour
Wescott & Sons Gorham Fire fighters Chicken Dinner ~ 4:30 p.m. 2 pm Sunday only. (approx. 1 % hrs)
POGO Realty Pete Kilpatrick— Spon. by Grondin 5 p.m. . .
Bath Fitters Motor Booty Affair— Spon. by Shaw Bros.  7-0 p.m. Me.et at the Hannaford Flag Pole, in parking lot
Pine Crest (Matt Mattingly) Fireworks—Spon. by Moody’s Collision Cnir 9 p.m. Railroad Ave to Elm Street. Left on Soutlll Street. Cross
street to Baxter House. South Street to High Street. Tour
FOUNDERS SOCIETY CIRCLE Sunday, May 29 I00OF building. Left on College Ave. Reverse and travel
SPONSORSHIP $100-$249 Gorham Taste Walk 11 am.-2 p.m. up Main Street back to Hannaford.
Willis Real Estate Granite State Zoo 10 a.m.-4 p.m.
POGO Realty Amusement Rides 12 p.m. @ﬂ[‘bam %igtum’ca[ %U[iet?
Chalmers Insurance Fourniers Karate 12-1 p.m. Yive Auction
Napi Distribution Jerks of Grass 1 p.m.
Melisa & Matt Robinson Historical Tours* 2 p-m. The Historical Society will have a Live Auction at 11:30 a.m.
Philip & Tatia Gagnon on Saturday, May 28 at the festival. Available will be certifi-
Brenda Caldwell * Provided by Gorham Historical Society cates for heating oil, cord wood, screened loam, auto repair,
Claire & Noah Miner horse riding lessons at area barns, loam, gourmet food, muse-
Dan LeVasseur Monday, May 30 (Memorial Day) um tickets, maple syrup, antiques and much more.
Darryl Wright Memorial Day Parade 11 a.m.
Philip Bartlett Amusement fides 12 pan Rain Location Information
Lisa & Clark Hincher
The rain location for Saturday’s musical events — Motor
FRIENDS OF GORHAM FOUNDERS Booty Affair and Pete Kilpatrick — will be at the
FESTIVAL UP TO $99 YourSpace facility at 215 Narragansett Street.
Donald & Virginia Cross
Gorham House of Pizza The Wireless Society of Southern Haine, an ama-
¢  teurradio club that meets monthly at the Gorham
, £ Recreation Dept., will set up and operate a special
Congratulations Gorbam § event station during the Festival. The club will also
Flaggy Meadow Farm %C; set up an information display and members will be
Carroll and Reta Young ¢ on hand to answer questions. For more informa-
and the boys ~ N tion about the Wireless Society of Southern Maine,
Walter, Craig and Bradley Young. 250th anniversary photo - please visit the club’s website at www.qsl.net/wslsm.
The float for Cook’s Country Store
=0

At Maine Natural Gas, we pride ourselves in having an excellent safety record. The natural gas
i ’ industry excels at building safe and reliable energy delivery systems...according to the U.S.
" i ‘ - Department of Transportation, no other energy delivery system does it better!
@

Maine Natural Gas distributes energy to homes and businesses in Brunswick, Topsham, Bowdoin,

. Freeport, Pownal, Gorham and Windham. Natural gas distribution pipelines are underground in

i these communities and we wanted you to know how to recognize a leak and what to do if one
occurs. Just in case... if a natural gas pipeline is leaking, you may notice:
-3 / No matter how hard we t,:y’ * A rotten egg odor * Dirt or dust blowing from * Bubbling in wet or flooded areas
\a: even the most loyal and trusted * A blowing or hissing sound a hole in the ground o Flames if a leak is ignited.

among us have accidents.

If you suspect there is a natural gas leak leave the area immediately and call 911.

After 911 is called, report the possible leak to Maine Natural Gas at 1-877-532-5636.
This toll-free Emergency number is staffed 24 hours a day 7 days a week.
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Congratulations Gorham — On Pour 275th Anniversary

6 County Road, Gorham

www.odonalsnurseries.com e (207) 839-4262
|

Nicely Property Team

Craig Nicely Keith Nicely
Office: 207.222.1714 Office: 207.222.1722
Cell: 207.318.3693 Cell: 207.650.2832
craignicely@masiello.com keithnicely@masiello.com

Kerry Porter

www.nicelypropertyteam.masiello.com P.0. Box 404 « Gorham ME 04038
17C Railroad Ave Gorham, ME 04038 1-877-839-5816 e kporter@consultcoastal.com

99B Main St., Gorham
www.tdbank.com
(207) 839-0800

65 Main St., Gorham
www.norwaysavingsbank.com
(207) 222-1502

Congratulations Gorham on

2nd fl Thriftiques Shop 275 wonderful years!

Vintage Finds & Repurposed Treasures

Gorham is a great place

to shop!

2nd floor, 8 School Street

(Use Dance Studio Street Entrance) (207) 671-9606
Hours: Wed & Fri. 10-5, Thur 10~7 sofbuild@maine.rr.com
Sat 10-4 or by appointment. 103 Harding Bridge Rd ¢« Gorham, ME 04038

Contact Sherrie at 839-8147 or thriftiques@yahoo.com

@ WILLLS Happy 275th Birthday

REAL ESTATE Gorham!

FRIENDS OF BAXTER MEMORIAL LIBRARY

71 South Street, Gorham, ME 04038
839-5031 * www.baxterlibrary.org
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This Page Sponsored by

GORHAM/ WEST GORHAM/ WESTBROOK ——

WWW.CASCOFCU.COM

—— (207) 839-5588 ——

Hee Cutting

Ice cutting, hauling and
storing at Kimball Pond in
early 1930s.

=0

Photos courtesy of Alice Mains

’ltke most Maine commu-
nities, Gorham’s economy
was originally based on farm-
ing. In order to support and
encourage local farm families, an
agricultural fair was organized.
The result was The Cumberland
County  Agricultural  and
Horticultural Society Fair, held
at the Narragansett Park (the old
racetrack, now Moody field.)

The fairs began in 1839 and
ran until 1941. At the fair farm-
ers could see demonstrations of
innovative ideas and new tech-
nologies for farming. There were
family events too. For women
there were displays of home-
made pies, pickles, breads and
handiworks. Men and children
would watch the horse and ox-
pulls and visit the animal exhib-
its. Prizes called premiums were

Of Interest ——

THE FAIR
—_— X\ —

Unknown

ORHAM'S 250"
S rtions

) 2 GRICVLTp, L
S 2 et | FAIR,

| PlpcaTinc
gl 75 finnuatFaipofse
i (UMBERLAND (OmTY

iCHLTURAL "

Photo courtesy of Suzie Phillips

Poster for Gorham’s 250th
anniversary celebration

held in 1986.
=00

awarded for outstanding per-
formance and goods. The 1895
fair program offered a special
premium, “To the Handsomest

Photo courtesy of Gorham Historical Society

Girl in Cumberland County, $10
in gold.” Also at the fair was the
traditional midway — games of
chance and various shows.

The train and trolley that
served Gorham provided much
needed transportation. Rides to
and from the fairground on the
railroad were free upon showing
a certificate from the Secretary
of the Fair. The Maine Central
Railroad gave free trips for live-
stock and articles exhibited.
Carriages were used to shuffle
fairgoers between the trolley
depot in Gorham Square and
Narragansett Park.

1941 marked the last of the
fairs. Racing continued to pros-
per until the mid 1960s when
a change in racing dates effec-
tively closed the raceway.

Photos credit John Phinney

150th anniversary celebration in the Village

=0

Photos credit John Phinney

Photos credit John Phinney

Parade procession in the 200th anniversary celebration

B0

Gorham Times
Archives

A story is told, by an elderly
resident of town, of a murder
that took place in Bickford’s
Stable, long ago. Several
Gorham men gathered there for
a party one evening. A “lady of
the night” from Portland attend-
ed the party. In the morning,
the body of a man was found in
the stable. The men involved
in this scandalous happen-
ing left town for several years.
The whole shocking affair was

hushed up.

Courtesy of “The Way It Was In
Gorham™ by Bertha Bridges Willis.
Copyright 1986.

In 2006 Gorham made the
Guinness Book of World
Records for the most people
wearing Groucho Marx glasses
in the same place at the same
time. In 2002, Gorham’s Centre
of Movement was noted for
the longest distance tap dance
when 13 dancers tapped from
Portland to Gorham.

Electricity did not make it into
some parts of Gorham until 1929.

Mail used to be delivered with
horses. The delivery started at
7 a.m. with one horse, then that
horse would be switched with
another horse halfway through
the delivery.

The Honorable Frederick
Robie was elected governor in
1882 and reelected in 1884.
He served until 1887. He was
a member of the House of
Representatives and presided as
Speaker of the House in 1872
and 1876. The Gorham Normal
School (now USM, Gorham
campus) was established
through his influence with the
legislature.

The West Gorham Union
Church was originally dedi-
cated as the Union Christian

Endeavor Chapel on March 16,
1899. The Ladies Circle of the
area started raising money for
the new building and is still an
active part of the church today.

&
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This Page Sponsored by

H&R BLOCK"®

14 MAIN STREET, GORHAM (207) 839-3317

—— Remembering Gorham’s Peterans ——

s Mlemorial Dap 2011 approaches, we remember with infinite gratitude all those from Gorham who fought for their country in

the past and we express our profound appreciation to those who are currently serving in the armed forces.

REVOLUTIONARY

WAR

Akers, John

Alden, Austin

Bacon, Timothy

Bacon, Nathaniel

Bangs, Thomas

Bangs, Barny

Bangs, Nathan

Bean, Daniel

Black, Joa

Black, Josiah

Blake, Joseph

Blake, John

Blake, Nathaniel

Blanchard, John

Brackett, Joseph

Bramhall, Sylvanus

Brown, Amos

Brown, Selvenus

Brown, Solomon

Brown, Simeon

Brown, Samuel

Burnell, John

Burnell Jr., John

Burton, William
ates, John

C a(lboum, blla>

Ci

Clark, Mom:
Cobb, Elisha
Cobb, Andrew
Coolbroth, James
Cornish, John
Cram, Daniel

Creesy, Joseph
Crocket, John
Crocket, Peter
Crocket, Joshua
Crockett, Samuel
Darling, John

s, Elijah
Dau: John

D«rk( or, Joshua
Dunn, Christopher
Dyer, Bickford
Dyer. y
Elder, John
Eldridge, Daniel
Elwell, John
Emery, John
Emery, Daniel
Files, Ebenezer
Fil amuel
Files, William
Fogg, Moses

Foy, John

Foye, John

Frost, Enoch
Frost, Nathaniel
Gammon, Samuel
Gammon, Philip
Gammon, Moses
Gammon, Daniel
Gammon, David
Gammon, John
Gammon, Joseph
Gilkey, James

Greeley John
Green, Solomon
Green, Benjamin
Green, Joseph
Green, John
Gustin, David

Hdm( om, Nzlﬂmn
Hanscom, Moses
Harding, John
Harding, William
Harding, Seth
Harmon, John
Haskell, John
Haskell, Benjamin
Haskell Jr., John
Hatch, Ezekiel
Hatch, Asa
Hatch, Nathaniel
Hatch, David
Hodgdon, Jeremiah
Hodsdon, Jeremiah
Horr, Philip

Hunt, George
Hunt, Ichabod
Hunt, Daniel
Hunt, George
Hunt, William
Hunt, Ephraim
Hunt, Oliver
Huntress, James

Stephen
sh, Joseph
Irish, Isaac

jenkins, Joshua
Jones, Jeremiah
Jones, Henry

Jones, Ephrain
Jones, Joseph
Jordain, Abner
Jordain, Moses
Jordan, Benjamin
Knight, John
Knight, Joseph
Lakeman, Josiah
Lary, James

Libby, Joab

Libby, Joseph
Libby, Reuben
Libby, Allison
Libby, Edward
Lombard, Nathaniel
Lombard, Butler
Lombard, Simon
Lombard, Jedediah
Lombard, Caleb
Lombard, Thomas
Lombard, Richard
Lombard Jr., Jedediah
Lombard Jr., Solomon
Maxell, Daniel
McDannell, Abner

McDonald, Peletiah
McDonald, Abner
McDonald, Joseph
McDonald, Charles
McDonell, Joseph
McDonell, Peletiah
McFarling, Robert
McLellan, Alexander
McLellan, William
McLellan, Cary
MecLellan, Jo
McLellan, Prince
Mellvin, John
Meserve, William
Meserve, John
Michel, Ebenezar
Millett, Thomas
Morse, Joseph
Morton, Ebenezer
Morton, James
Morton, David
Morton, Thomas
Morton Jr., Ebenezar
Munson, William
Murch, Matthias
Murch, Ebenezar
Murch, John
Murch, James
Murch, Samuel
Murch, William
Murch, Ebenezar
Murch, Matthias
Murch Jr., John
Paine, William
Parker, John
Parker, Nathaniel
Peabody, Josiah
Perkins, John
Perkins, James
Phinney, Edmund
Phinney, Ebenezar
Phinney, Joseph
Phinney, John
Phinney Jr., Edmund
Pierce, John
Poat, Thomas
Poland, Moses
Pote, Thomas
Powell, Stephen
» Chandler
s

Rich, Joel

. Benjamin
, George
Rolf, Benjamin
Ross, James
Rounds, Joseph

Sargent, Joseph
Sawyer, Jonathan
Sawyer, Joel
Sawyer, Stephen
Skillings, Thomas
Skillings, John
Smith, William
Smith, John
Stevens, John
Stevens, Nathaniel

Stevens, Benjamin
Stone, Joseph
Stone, Jondlhan

Strout, George
Stuart, Wentworth

Stuart, Joseph
Stubbs, James
Sturgis, Jonathan
Swett, Stephen
Swett, Josiah
Swett, Joshua
Thomas, Tufts

Thomas, Charles
Thombs, Amos
Thombs, Charles
Thombs, Ebenezer
Thurell, Richard
Thurlo, John
Thurlo, James
Thurlo, Aza
Thurrell, Asa
Trundy, John
Vickery, David
Waterhouse, George
Waterman, Malachi
Watson, John
Watson, Eliphalet
Watson, Coleman
Watson, John
Watts, David
Webb, James
Webb, Edward
Weeks, William
Wescott, Isaac
West, Desper
Westmore, James
Weston, Joseph
Weston, Zachariah
Weymouth, Joseph
Wheeler, Thomas
White, John
White, Peter
‘Whitmore, William
Whitmore, Samuel
Whitmore, Daniel
Whitney, Joseph
Whitney, Paul
Whitney, Napthalim
Whitney, John
Whitney, Amos
Whitney, David
Whitney, Moses
Whitney. Paul

W}ume\, Daniel
Whitney, Uriel
Whitney, Abel
Whitney, Samuel
Whitney, Zebulon
Whitney, Isaac
Williams, Hart
Williams, Jeremiah
Wilson, Edward

Wiswell, William
Wood, William

CIVIL WAR*
Adams, John
And . Abram
Blake, Frankiln
Brown, Freeman
Brown, James
Bumpus, Mo
Cannell, William
Coonley, George
Douglass, Ormond
Duffey, Peter
Dunn, William
Edwards, George
Elder, Alonzo
Estes, Albert
Fields Jr., Joseph
Fogg, Almon

Harding, John
Harmon, Joseph
Harmon Jr., Shirley
Haskell, James
Hicks, Ephraim
Johnson, William
Libby, Lewis
Lowell, Oliver
Mains, Slomon
McPhee, John
Merrett, George
Metcalf, Benjamin
Newell, Henry

Paine, Charles
Parker, Mahlon
Patrick, Charles
Phillips, Daniel
Pow William
Rand, Freedom
Reed, George
Riggs, Charles
Rolfe, Emery
Roberts, Daniel
Roberts, John
Shaw, Chester
Small, Joseph
Small, Francis
Smith, Horatio
Smith,
Smith, Silas

Smith, William
Spaulding, William
Stevens, John
Tripp, Moses
Ward, Charles
Ward, William
Waterman, Charles
Whitney, Alonzo
Whitney, G

Williams, Charles

WORLD WAR I
Alden, Austin
Alden, Lewis
Blake, Eugene
Blake, Leland
Bodge, George
Boothby, Everett
Brackett, Alton
Brackett, Arthur
Bradbury, Ira
Bragdon, Stacy
Butler, Raymond
Cargill, Oscar
Chase, Sheldon
Clemens, Leroy

Cr George
Cummings, Nathan
Deering, Albion
Dennett, George
Douglass, Lewis
Douglas, Raymond
Elliot. Ralph
Files, Chester
Fogg. James

Fogg, Milton
Foley, Frank
Foley, Thomas
Freeman, Harland
Garland, Philip
Gonyer,
Gustin, Everett
Hague, Albert
Hague, Arthur
Hamblen, Archelaus
Hamblen, Charles
Hamblen, Forrest
Hamblen, Herbert
Hannan, William
Hanson, Ernest
Harding, Carroll
Harlow, Charles

Harmon, Lawrence

Gene

a

Harper, Fred
Harrison, Arthur
Hayes, John
Hill, Cyril
Holden, Caryl

Hooper, Howard
Hooper, Leon
Huff, Fred
Hutcherson, George
Johnson, Gordon
Johnson, Ralph
Johnson, Walter
Jones, George
Joy, Harry
Kemp, George
Klm)dll Clinton
Kimball, Samuel
Lane, Emest
Larochelle, Harry
Larochelle, Leroy
Leavitt, Henry
Lepold, Herman
E

Libby, Phlhp

Lombard, Charles

Lowell, Walter
Maher, George
Marsh, Ermest
Marsh, Lawrence
berry, Earl
berry, Franklin

Mmlon W|”dtd
Moses, Leland

Moses, Wilbur
Moulton, Olin
Murray, Austin
O’Brien, William
Parker, Ernest
Parker Jr., Gardner
Perkins, Roscoe
Reed, Clifford
Regan, James
Rhyome, Peter
Rich, Archibald
Richards, Alton
Ridlon, Percy
Robie, Frederick
Robie, John
Robinson, Christy
Robinson, Lawrence
Rounds, Robert
Russell, Earl
Russ?ll Willis
wyer, Almon
er, Ralph

. George
qhdw ]uuu
Simms, Henry
Simms, Herbert
Smith, Clifford
Smith, H. William
Smith, Mitchell
Smith, Royal
Stigman, Henry
Stimpson, Roger
Stokes, Neil

Sturgis, David
Tapley, James
Thompson, Clifford
Toft, George

Toft, Howard

Toft, James

Tuttle, Neal
Walker, Charles
Walsh, Daniel
Warren, Carle
Warren, Manfred
Waterman, Clarence
Webber, Herbert
Weymouth, Leon
Whippie, Frank
Whippie, Fred
Whitney, Robie
Wiband, Cecil

WORLD WAR II
Adams Jr., James
Adams, Joe

Alden, Elton
Alden, John

Allen Jr., Frank
Allen, James
Allen, John,

Allen, Robert.
Anderson, Carl
Anderson, Clyde
Anderson, Earl
Anderson Jr., Ernest
Anderson, Walter
Anderson, William
Archambault, Nancy
Armstrong, Erwin R
Austin, Albert
Austin, Everett
Austin Jr., Ralph
Austin, Richard
Austin, Willis
Bachelder, Robert
Bailey, Linwood
Bailey, Raymond
Banks, Frederick
Beal, Leonard
Bean, Clyde

Bean, Edward
Bean, Leonard
Bean, Leslie

Bean, Merrill
Bean, Olive

Bean, Philip

Bean, Robert
Bean, William
Belanger, Leo
Belyea, Stephen
Bennett, George
Bennett, Mary
Bennelt, Richard
Bennett, Vernon
Bernier, Rene
Berry. Leslie
Berry, Raymond
Berry. William
Blake, Lewis
Blanchard, Albert
Bodge, Philip
Boggs, Edwin
Boivin, John
Bolton, Albert
Bonney, David
Boote, Nelson
Booth, Donald
Booth, Richard
Boothby, Austin
Boothby, Foster
Boothby. Philip
Boothby, Russell
Bouffard, Charles
Bouffard, Ulrick
Bovine, John
Boyman, Richard
Brackett Jr., Alton
Brackett, Harold
Brackett, Raymond
Brackett, Robert
Bragdon, Fred
Bridgham, Lawrence
Bridgham, Malcolm
Brown, Clayton
Brown, Jerry
Brown, Kenneth

. William
Burke, Raymond
Burnell, Chester
Burnell, Gerald
Burwood Jr., Howard
Bushley, Donald
Butler, Gerald
Byers, Chester
Cameron, Donald
Cargill, Arthur
Carlton, Edward
Caron, Corinne
Carson, Clayton

Carson, Roy
Chambers, Albert
Chambers, Galen
Charles, John
Charlton, Harold
Charlton, William
Christl, Ernest
Christl, Richard
Clark, Douglas
Clark, Ira

Clark, Robert
Clement, Robert
Clinch, Albert
Clinch, Walter
Cloudman, Harry
Collins, Frank
Conley Jr., Coleman
Conners, Charles
Conway, Norman
Cook, Norman
Cook, Richard
Corkum, Burton
Corkum Jr., Harold
Coyne Jr.
Cressey,

Cressey, Robert
Currie, Donald
Currie, Frances
Cushing, Kenneth
Cushing, Luther
Daggett, Alfred
Daggett, Francis
Davis, Blaine

Davis, Stanford
Day, Hazel

Day, Kenneth

Day Jr., Lewis
Dean, Cecil

Deane, James
Dearborn, Harlan
Dearborn, Lawrence
Deering Jr., Donald
Deering, Oscar
Dennett, George
Dolan, Joseph
Donovan, Frederick
Dooen, Michael

Du(hameau Blanche
Duchaineau, Gemma
Duchaineau, Paul
Durgin, George
Durgin, Helen
Durgin, Malcolm
Dyer, Harold

Dyer, Richard

Dyer, Russell

Eddy, James

Elliott, Burton
Elliott, Clifford
Emmons Jr., Elmer
Estabrook, Raymond
Estes, Elwood
Evans, Moyle Wilby
Evans, Paul Calvin
Fernald, Brendon
Field, George

Field, Thomas
Fillmore, Herbert
Fillmore, Philip
Fisher, Wallace
Fitzmorris, Bernard
Fitzmorris, Lawrence
Fogg, Arthur

Fogg. Harold

Fogg, Horace

Fogg. John

Fogg, Kenneth
rugg Leon

Iwood

] er Jr., Fred
Foster, George
ster, Herman
Foster, Leland
ster, Ralph
Raymond

> Roland
Fuller, Frances
Fuller, George
Fuller, Reginald
Fuller, Robert
Gagne, Joseph
Gagnon. Roger
Gale, Vincent
Gardner, Roderick
Garland, Clarence
Gates, Clifford
Gendon, William
Genthner, Richard
Genthner, Douglas
Gervais, Albenie
Gervais, Llewellyn
Getchell, Guy
Getchell, Herman
Giggey, Vincent
Gillette, Arthur
Gillette, Gordon
Gilman Sr., James
Gilmore, John
Gooch, Lloyd
Gooch, Paul
Gooch, Paul N.
Gooch, Philip
Goodbridge, Richard
Goodrich, Philip
Gordon, Robert
Gordon, Royce
Gordon, William
Gould, Roger
Graffam, Algie
Graffam Jr., Nelson
Graffam, Stanley
Grant, Barry
Grant, Darrell
Grant, Keith
Grant, Kenneth
Grant, Malcolm
Graves, John

Gray, Trving

Cnn Jr., Minard
Gray, Sherman
Greene, Ellsworth
Guimond, Alfred
Guimond, Joseph
Gulian, Robert
Guptill Jr., Vernon
Hague, Albert
Hague, Aldana

Hague. Fugene
Hague, George
Hague. Lawrence
Hague, William
Hall, Donald
Hamblen, Almery
Hamblen, Archelaus
Hamblen, Charles
Hamblen, Henry
Hamblen Jr., Joseph
Hamblen, Paul
Hammond, Verne F.
Hammond, Waverly
Hand, Theodore
Hannon, William
Hanscomb, Clarence
Hansen, Harold
Hanson, Lloyd
Harding, C.

Hardy, John
Harmon, Alton
Harmon, Harold
Harriman, Adelbert
Harris, Myrile
Harvey, Arnold
Haskell, Daniel
Hattenburg, John
Hawkes, Edwin
Hawkes, Kenneth
Hawkes, Raymond
Hawkes, Roland
Hawkes, Ronald
Henckel, George
Henckel, William
Henderson, Weyouth
Herrick, Malcolm
Hewett, Elwood
Higgins, Lawrence
Hill, John

Hill, Philip

Hirtle, Clifford
Hoar, Gerald
Hodgdon, Harry
Hodgkins Jr., Herman
Hodsdon, Richard
Hodsdon, Spaulding
Holman, John
Holman, Paul
Hooper. Philip
Hooper, Robert
Hoover, Robert

Hubbard, Robert
Huff, Trving
Huntley, Russell
Huse, James
Hyberts, Philip
Ingalls, Earl

James, Clarence
Jensen, Charles
Jensen, Robert
Jensen, Russell
Johnson, Carlton
Johnson, Charles
Johnson, Everett
Johnson, Paul
Johnson, Vincent
Jordan, Frank
Jordan, George
/ el

Kellevv Wil
Kelley, William P.
Kenney Jr., Thomas
Kennie, Barret
Kennie, Ellis
Kennie, George
Kennie, Leon
Kennie, Robert
Kettell, Albert
Kimball, Philip
Kimball, Robert
Kimball, Wallace
Kimball, William
Knapton, Robert
Knapton, William
Knight, Charles
Knight, David
Knight, Warren
Labrecque, Albert
Labrecque, Philip
Labrecque, Romeo
Lamb, Richard
Landry, Lorraine
Lane Jr., Ernest
Langdon, Barbara
Langdon, Jean B
Larochelle Jr., H:
Larochelle, Roger
Larrabee, Donald
Larral -¢, Donald

Laveny hd\un
Lebrecque, Romeo
Leighton, Harold
Leighton Jr., Lloyd
Leonard, Henry
Leonard, Richard
Lestage, John
Lewis, Edward

i b» Arthur
by Jr., Carl
Libby Jr.. Floyd
Libby, Freeman
Libby. Lloyd
Libby, Merrill
Libby, Merton
Libby, Mervin
Libby, Philip
Libby, Ralph
Libby., Robie
Libby, Walter
Libby, William
Lindsey, Ester
Littlefield, Caryl
Livermore, Hervey
Livermore, Mary
Loeffler, John
Lopez, Bertrand
Love, Robert

Loveitt Sr., Burleigh
Lovendale, Herbert
Lowell, Clayton
Lowell, George
Lowell, Harry
Lowell Jr., Richard
Lune» Dwight

: Raymond

Mm ain, Rodney
MacDougal, Joseph
Magausson, Paul

Mansﬁeld l'red
Marsh, Forrest
Marsh, Hartley
Marston, David
Martin, Annie
Martin, Ralph
Martin, Rodney
Mason, Philip
Mayberry, Harris
Mayberry, Lloyd
Mayberry, Roland
Mayberry, Stanley
Maye, Philip
Maye, Robert
Mayse Jr., Dell
MecAllister, David
McAllister, John
McBain, Robert
McCleave, Robert
MeCormack, Joseph
McCormack, Norman
McDougall, Joseph
McGinty, John

McLain, lioben

McLellan, Clyde
McLucas, Rexford
Melanson, Joseph
Melcher, Frank
Mellin, Joseph
Merkle, Malcolm
Merrifield, Clayton
Merrill, Edward
Merrill, Henry
Merrill, William
Meserve, Keith
Meserve, Ma
Meserve, Morris
Messenger Mace
Miller, Elliott
Miller, Percy
Mitchell, Alden
Mitchell, Frank
Mitsmenn, Albert
Mitsmenn, Donald
Molasky, James
Moody. Paul
Morey, Elwood
Morrill, Henry
Morton Jr., George
Morton, Leroy
Morton, Oland
Moulton, Alfred
Mountain, Robert
Moxcey, Kenneth
Mucci, James
Murray, George

ard

Nealy, George
Nealy, Russell
Nelson Jr., Aaron
Nelson, Bergston
Newcomb, Lloyd
Nickerson, Ellis
Noyce, Frank
Nugent Jr., Arthur
Nugent, James
Nugent, Melyille
Donald

Oleson,
Olsen, Sven
Olson, Frank
Oshorne, George
Osborne, Robert
Owen, Kenneth
Owens, Albert
Owens, Thomas

Parker, Clayton
Parker, Clyde
Parker, Erland
Parker, Harry
Parker, Paul
Parker, Philip
Parker, Stanley
Parsons, Harris
Parsons, Ruth
Partridge, Laurence
Pennock, Merrill
Perkins, George
Perkins, Lester
Perry, Clifton
Peterson, Jeanette
Philbrook, Douglas
Pike, Kenneth
Pike, Stanley
Pinkham, Silas
Plaisted, Kenneth
Plaisted, Walter
Plummer, Clifford
Plummer, Harland
Plummer, Lester
Porter, John

Pride, Lona
Proctor, Constantine
Proulx, Arthur
Proulx, Earle
Pullen, Kenneth
Quinn, Rodney
Rafnell Jr., Alfred
Randall, Gerald
Randall, Harry
Randall, Kenneth
Randall, Lawrence
Randall, Richard
Ranks, Frederick
Rawson, Elaine
Redman, Charles
Reed, Richard
Reilly, Bernard

Rice, Henry
Richardson, Charles
Richardson Jr.,

Freeman
Rickett, Robert
Rickett, Thomas
Rickords, Linwood
Arthur
Faymond
Roberts, Harry
Roberts, Rd]ph
rick

d,
Robillard, Paul
Robillard, Robert
Robinson, Lee
Rogers, Lester
Rogers, Shelley
Rossignol, Emilio
Safford, Henry
Samson, George
Sanborn, Bernard
Sanborn, John
Sanborn, Thomas
Sargent, S. Roger
Sawtelle, Kenneth
%wn rJr., Hall

m ott, George
Severance, Henry
Severance, Russell

Shaw, Lewis
Shaw, Roger
Shepard, Edwin
Short, Alfred

Shon Herbert
nno Jr., Arnold
s; nno, Joseph
Silver, Archie
Silver, Roy

Small, Walter
Smart, Ernest
Smith, Arnold
Smith, Bernard
Smith, Claire
Smith, Durwood
Smith, Edwin
Smith, Brace
Smith, Irving
Smith, Kenneth
Smith, Malcolm
Smith, Margaret
Smith, Paul
Smith, Raymond
Smith, Roland
Snell, Daniel
Snell Jr., Henry
Synder, Hick
Soule, Albert
Soule, Dennis
Soule, Le

Soule, Walter
Southworth, George
Spiller, Alvin

Louis

» Almon
, Theron
Stone, Benjamin
Stone, Donald
Straw, Mahlon
Strout, Edwin
Strout, Herbert
Strout, Leroy
Strout, Raymond
Strout, Rodney
Strout, William
Strout, Wilton
Sturgis Jr., David
Swett, Roger
Swett, William
s,phm. Leroy

Tapley, Russell
Taylor Jr., A. Colbey
George
Esther
Thomas, Stanley
Thomas, Stanley W.
Thorne, Robert
Tillson, George
Tobin, James
Tollisfson, Margaret
True, Carlton
True, Harry
True, John
Van Tassell, Charles
Vanbetuw, Gerard
Vandussen, Thornton
Varney, Lewis
Vaughan, Thomas
Verrill, Clayton
Verrill, Earl
Verrill, Paul
Wagner, Edward
Wagner, John
Waite, Laurence
Wallace, Frederick
Wambold, Lloyd
Ward, Neal
Ward, Sheldon
Washburn, Richard
Wass, Loring
Waterman, Carl
Waterman, Fred
Waterman, Harvey
Watson, Althea
Watson, Frank
Watson, Richard
Watson, Walter
Watters, Leland
Watts, Newell
Webb, Arnold
Webb, George
Wehb Thornton
F

Welch, Raymond
Whetstone Jr., Harold
Wiggin, Alfred
Wiggin, Clyde
Wiggin, Elliot
Wiggin, Robert
Wilder, Alfred
Wilder, Henry
Williams Jr., Albert
Williams, Donald
Williams, John
Williams, Owen
Wing, Leon

Wing, Randall
Wood, Clayton
Woodis, Milton
Woods, Arthur
Woodward, Gilbert
Wyman, Joseph
Young, Carroll
Young, Walter
Zinchuk, Walter

KOREAN WAR
Andersen, Halvor
Barden, Hubert
Bartol, Novella
Bean, Bernard
Beecher, Robert
Beesley, Harold
Benson, Everett

Berry, Ralph
Blake, Gordon
Bonney, Granville

Bmﬂdon Fred

Bragdon, Warren
Bridges, Arthur
Bridgham, Merle
Brookes, Miles
Brown, Clayton
Brown, Hartson

Brown, Thomas
Bryan, Florence
Burnell, Philip
Burnett, Roy
Burnham, Carl
Burnham, Ralph
Butler, William
Chamberlain, Arthur
Chapman, Elwood
Churchill, Donald
Churchill, Richard
Clark, Theodore
Clinch, Albert

e, Leroy
Cousens, Nathaniel
Cox Jr., John

Cox Jr., Robert
Dix, Charles
Dolloff, Donald
Doucette, Richard
Dow, Frederick
Dubay, Leo
Duran, Donald
Durgin, Raymond
Duso, Charles
Emmons, Robert
Estabrook, Allan
Estey, Donald
Esty Jr., James

Field, Richard
Field, Sanford

Flood Jr., Merton
Fogg Jr., Donald
Ford, John
Forrest, Russell
Gagnon, Raymond
Gavett, Fred
Giles, Richard
Grant, Raymond
Hague, Douglas
Hale, Donald
Hale Jr., Durwood
Hall, Charles
Hamblen, Calvin
Hamlin, Dana
Hannon Jr., George
Hannon, Ernest
Hatt, Arthur

Hencl k(l Erland

Holmes John
Hoyt, Edward
Huff, Audrey
Huff, Clayton
Huntley, Frederick
Trish, Reginald
Jensen, Martin
Jones, Gary
Jones, Lawrence
Lawrence

ie, Malcolm
Kidder, Robert
Kimball, Donald
Kimball, Richard
King, Donald
King, Gerald
Knight, Clifford
que, Roger
Roland

Lambert, George
Laverty, Carlton
Laverty, John
Leavitt, Neil

Lombard Jr., William
Look, Harry
Lord, All

Mains, Clifford
Mains, Kenneth
Manchester, Charles

Mayberry, Donald
Mayberry, John
Mayberry, Warren
Maye, Gerald
Merrill Jr., Arthur
Merrill, Roger
Moody Jr., James
Moody, Richard
Morton, Ernest
Morton, Keith
Moses, Leigh
Murchie, Warren
Murphy Jr., Carl
Nason, Kenneth
Nason, Warren
Neal Jr., Elwood
Neal, Paul
Northrop, Arden
Parady, George

George
Pike, Willard
Plummer, Robert

Powers, Donald
Randall, Robert
Richardson, Keith
Richardson, Kerry
Ridlon, Herbert
Riley, Ronald
Rowe, Albion

Sanborn Jr., Charles
Sanville, Raymond
Sawyer Jr., Hall
Shaw Jr., Fred
Shaw, Philip

Snell, Robert
Stevens, Robert
Stevens, Thora
Stokes, Althea
Stultz, Harland
Tapley, Roland
Tapley, Sherman
Tasper Jr., Fred
Thompson, Leroy
Thuotte, Lawre
Turgeon, Paul
Van Tassell
Verrill, Merton
Verrill, Shirley
Walker, Bernard
Welch, Robert
Whitman, John
Willard, Robert
Wing, George
Winship Jr., Robert
Witham, Raymond
Wood, Jesse Paul
Wright, Wayne
York, Everett

VIETNAM

Ahlquist, Philip
Alfiero, Gary
Allen, Bruce
Allen Jr., Paul
Allen, Peter
Allen, Richard
Allen, William
Armentino, Donald
Arno, Russell
Artz, Connie
Austin, David
Austin, Frederick
Baker, Donald
Baker, Wayne
Bangs, Neal
Barini, Charlene
Barrett, James
Bean, Delbert
Begnoche, Lois
Belyea, Glen
Betters I, William
Bicknell, Bruce
Blanchard, Robert
Boivin, Paul
Boote, George
Borek Jr., Joseph
Bouffard, Raymond
Boutin, Robert
Brackett, Edward
Brann, Fred

Brann Leomnd

Bridges, bhe:bume
Bright, James
Brofee, David
Brown, Alan
Brown, Harlow
Brown, Michael
Bryant, Richard
Bryant, Richard
Buck, Jonathan
Buffum, William
Bumps. Bruce
Burnell Jr., Franklin
Burnell, Ronald
Burnell, William
Burnham, Dennis
Burnham, Richard
Callahan, Richard
Carey, Michael
Cargill, James
Carson, Richard
Carver, Lloyd
Caston, David
Center, Donald
Charest, Philip
Charest, Raymond
Charlton, William
Cherardi Jr., George
Childs, Jeffrey
Clark, Richard
Clay, James
Clinch, Albert
Clites, Dale
Colburn, Gary
Cole, David
Conrad, Victor
Conway, James
Coron, Russell
Costales Jr., Manuel
Crockett, Steven
Dame, George
Dame, Tomas
Daniels, Dennis
Davis Jr., Frank
he

Dearborn, Ronald
Delcourt, Donald
Dewitt, Roy
Dionne, Lawrence
Dodge, Paul
Doiron, Gene
Doucette Jr., Howard
Douglass, Edward
Drown, Ronald
Ducett, Alan
Duso, Edwin
Duso, William

I Dennis
Dyer, James
Eaton, Donald
Eaton, Kenneth
Egers. Lloyd
Ellis, Kenneth
Elwell, John
Emerson Jr., Joseph
Erskine, Mark
Erskine, Peter
Estabrook, Roy

Esty. William
Farmer, Leo
Farmer, Peter
Farrington, Martin
Farwell, Peter
Felch, David
Fickett Jr., Donald
Foley, Timothy
Foss, Richard
Francoeur, Robert
Gallant, Diana
Galli, David
Gardner, David
Gardner, Richard
Garland, Alfred
Garland, George
Garland, Robert
Garland, Robert
Garland, William
Giguere Jr., Gerard
Gilikson, Philip
Gillerest 111, James
Gilman, Stephen
Glover, Ronald
Grant Jr., Harold
Graves, Stephen
Grondin, Philip
Hackett, Michael
Hackett, Ronald
Hamblen, Keith
Hamblen, Steven
Hamilton, John
Hanna, George
Hannaford 111, Charles
Hanson, Barry
Harmon, David
Harmon, Donald
Haskell Jr., Daniel
Haskell, David
Haskell, Jack
Hatch, William
Hawes, Harold
Hawkes, Arthur

Hawkes, Jeffrey
Hawswell, James

Phillip
Higgins, Warren

Hodgkins, Raymond
Holmes, Robert
Hopkins, Ronald
Howard, Bruce
Hoyt, Bradford
Hoyt 111, Harry
Hulff, Averill
Huff, Bruce

Huff Jr.. Clayton
Huff, Ladd

Hunt, Edward
Hunt Jr., William
Huntl [imothy
Hutchinson, Thomas
Hutto Jr., Charles
Hyman, Theodore
Irish, Dennis
Trving Jr., David
Jacobs, Richard
James, Robert
Jameson, David
Johnson, Eugene
Johnson, Kenneth
. Stephen
wrence

Jose, David
Joyce, Thomas

Key, James

Kimball Jr., Philip
King, Rodney

Kinney, Jon

Knudsen, Richard
Kreiton, Benjamin
Laberge, Joseph
Laberge, Michael
Labrecque, Gilbert
Labrecque, Rudolph
LaCroix, Raymond
Lambert, Donald
Lambert 111, Frederick
Lane Jr., Harold
Larrivee, Gary
Larrivee, Michael
Lawry, Albert
Leadbetter, Freemont
LeClere,
Lefebvre, Peter
Leighton, Raymond
Lestage, Lawrence
Letarte, Ronald
Lewis, Robert
Libby, Dale

Libby, Harvey
Libby, Jack

Libby. Richard
Libby, Steven
Lnl»hy I Walter

David

Lowe, Roderic
Luce, Gregory
Luebbert, Kenneth
Luebbert, Wayne
Lunt, John
MacDonald, Lawrence
MacLeod, James
MacPhee, Kenneth
Mallory, Dale
Mallory, Douglas
Mallory, Ronald
Marsh, Richard
Marston, Jon
Martin, Gerald
Masker, Harland
Mason, Philip
McGrath, Jeff
McGrath, William
Melnnis, Henry
MecLaughlin, Daniel
Meggison, Dale
Merry, Robert
Meserve, Ronald
Metcalf Jr., Philip
Mills, Alan

Mills, Ellsworth
Mills, Peter
Minard, Roger
Moberg, William
Monighetti, Frank
Morrill, Wayne
Morton, Dennis
Morton Jr., Gerald
Myatt, John
Napoleone, Lawrence

Nason, Stephen
Nelson, David
Nelson, Gary

Newell Jr., Ralph
Newell, Sandra
Newell, Stanwood
Nicolaides Jr., Kimon
Nicolaides, Peter
Bruce

-, Stanley

t, Ovid
OBrien, Denni
Osborne, Frederi
Page. Robert
Paige, Phillip
Paige Jr.. Robert
Palmer, Roy
Patch 11, Charles
Paul, Terry
Pelletier, Larry
Pelletier, Rlc ard

Phillips, Amy
Phillips, Carl
Phinney, John
Pickett 111, Lloyd
Pide, Ralph
Pierce, Laurence
Pierce, Philip
Pike, Carl

Pinel, Robert
Plummer, Robert
Quinn, Rodney
Quinn, Roy

Ray, Jonathan

Raychard, Way

Reed, Wallace Smart
Reitze, Charles
4

Ricker, Donald
Ricker, Fred
Riley, Edward
Roberts, Boynn
Roberts Jr., Clifford
Robinson, Michael
Roche Jr., Robert
Rowe, David
Sampson, Albert
Sampson, Ronald
Sawyer, Ruel
Scammon, Henry
Scammon, Mason
Scholl, John
Seribner, Rodney
Seal, Alfred
Seavey, Kenneth
Settle, Dennis
Severance 111, Henry
Shannon, Byron
Shaw IT1, William
Shepard, Ronald
Shiers, Martin
Short, Alfred
Short, Herbert
Smith, Dennis
Smith, Glenn
Smith, James
Smith, M
Snow Jr., Les
Stevens, Bruce
Stevens, Je
Strout 111, Edwin
Strout, Stephen
Stuart, Frederick
Stuart, Lawrence
Stuart Jr., Wyatt
Sturgis 111, David
Tapley, Robert
Thurston, Kevin
Tibbetts, Roderic
Tibbetts, Walter
Towle, Ralph
Towle, Terrance
Turgeon, Peter
Tweedie, Maurice
Wagner, Richard
Wagner, Wayne
Wallace, John
Wallace, Joseph
Washburn, Glen
Washburn, Kent
Watts, Stephen
Webb, Michael
Webber, Robert
Webster, Arthur
Weeman, Philip
Welch Jr., Roland
Wentworth, Stephen
Whetstone, Harold
White, Jack
Whitten, Charles
Wilbur, Robert
Wilder, John
Wiley, Robert
Willette, Linwood
Williams, Bruce
Williams, Rodney
Williamson, George
Wllllam:on Robert
Robert

l roy
Wing, William
Wood, Alfred
Wyman, Joseph
Young, David
Ywanciow, Anthony

ter

Gulf War
Ballantyne, Kimberly
O'Leary, Timothy
Shorthill, Joseph

The Gorham Times
was unable to obtain a
list of those who have
served or are serving in
Traq and Afghanistan.

#At press time the
Gorham Times realized
only those killed in
battle were included.
We apologize for the
error.
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Maryanne Bear Julie Chandler

HOLLIS $264,000-Immaculate 3 GORHAM $269,900-Sundrenched GORHAM $328,000-1920 SF PATIO PARK-Pristine 16" wide 3
BR, 2 BA open concept Cape w/2 car 3 BR, 3 BA condo at Pheasant Knoll. amazing home plus 32X60 radiant flr BR mobile w/applianced kit/dining area,
gar on 3.20 acs. Bonus room w/wet bar, Beautifully landscaped, walk to Village heat garage! Sunny open concept, lovely spacious LR & master BR, new deck .
daylight bsmt. & USM. 3 acre setting. $69,358

Mike Griffin Jane Mason

. . GORHAM $223,900-Attractive 5 STANDISH RANCH-Updated w/  GORHAM $239,900-Brand new GORHAM VILLAGE $244,000

BR farmhouse on 3 acs. Updated sys- new flooring, roof, appliances, lighting Colonial on 2.4 acs. 3 BR, 1.5 BA w/ 3 BR, 2 BA Cape w/ell & barn.
Jeff Mason Peter Mason tems, replacement windows, hdwd flrs . & heating system. 2.25 acs. Dry daylight open concept. Tile/hdwd flrs, future Remodeled home w/enclosed porch,

Excellent condition! bsmt. $174,900 master suite over garage. rear deck, huge backyard.

Becky Gallant Mlke Rand

GORHAM $249,900-3BRs on 2.75 STANDISH $349,900-Over 3300 BUXTON $179,000-Dates back STANDISH $47,000-Looking for a
acs. Oversized heated 2 car garage. SF of living space in this Colonial with to the 1800’s. Near Saco Rvr, this Irg mobile on a rented lot that is | acre w/
Finished bmst, bonus room over garage. 3.7 acs of professionally landscaped & = home has wide board flrs, many FP’s,a  privacy? Includes a 2 car gar. Park rent
Over 2600 SF. irrigated grounds. taste of the past! only $240 a month.

39 Main Street www.pogorealty.com
Gorham (207) 839-3300

Congratulations Gorham
on the 275th!

From the proud descendants
of some of Gorham'’s
earliest settlers.

Paul Willis, Janet Willis, David Willis

WILLIS REAL ESTATE

347E Main St. Gorham  839-3390 e willis@gwi.net
www.paulandjanwillis.com

Steve Hamilton—Realtor®

17C Railroad Avenue
Gorham, Maine 04038
Office: 207-222-1707
Cell: 207-347-1363
Email: stevehamilton@masiello.com
www.StevesMaineRealEstate.com
Call me for a FREE home warranty
with listing!
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64 MAIN STREET, GORHAM —— (207) 839 4796 ——

Gorham Academy ~ This is
not only the oldest class-
room building on the USM
campus but is also one
of the best examples of
Federal school architecture
in Maine. Gorham Academy
was approved May 1805
and a Preceptor was
selected. Students (at least
10 years of age) would
receive instruction in
reading, writing, arithmetic,
English grammar and
composition, speaking,
geography and the use of
globes, mathematics and
their various branches, and
Latin and Greek. There
would also be instruction
in Precepts of the Christian
Religion. 33 students were
enrolled by the end of the
year and girls were later
allowed to enroll.

The co-educational
arrangement continued
for about 30 years before
another building was added
and the institution began its
long evolution toward the
USM we know today.

In 1910 Academy Hall was
given to the state under a
999-year lease under which
the outside of the building
was not to be altered and
the building used for
educational purposes only.
Today it is used by the USM
Art Department.

=0

Paine House, Main Street

and New Portland Road
=0

Photo courtesy of Gorham Historical Society

Photo courtesy of Gorham Historical Society

— Pistorical LBuildings ——

Free Meetinghouse ~ Built in 1821 on land donated by
Alexander McLellan, the original purpose was to provide a
place for the displaced, church-based singing society, the
Handels, who had many of the oldest and best singers in
town. From 1850 for a hundred years was used as a Town

Hall. Now used as the USM Art Gallery.
=Sl

Photo credit Martha T. Harris

The Baxter House Museum is a little Federal style house
over 200 years old, built in 1797 by Issac Gilkey.

It is set back from the road and on the north side of the
Baxter Memorial Library. This house was the home of the
Baxter family for 20 years. In 1907, James P. Baxter
donated the house to the Town of Gorham to be used

as a museum.

=0

Babb’s Covered Bridge: Originally built in 1763.
Present bridge erected in 1976 and is a replica of the one
that burned in 1973. It is one of ten covered bridges
remaining in Maine.

=0

Photo courtesy of John Phinney

Photo courtesy of Gorham Historical Society

HUSTON FARM
X\/

Martha Sanborn (Reprinted from
Gorham Times, 03/22/1996)

be old PHuston Jfarm,

located at the present day
site of the Public Works ga-rage
and landfill, served as Gorham’s
Poor Farm for many years. Early
in Gorham’s history, the care of
the poor fell to the selectmen.
The town took care of the poor as
economically as possible. Later,
the poor were “let out” to the
lowest bidder in exchange for
their labor, an often profitable
proposition for the bidder. In
1812, this practice was ended
and the town began a search for
a more permanent farm for the
poor. Several farms were used,
including John Hamblen Jr.’s
farm on Gray Road, until 1837,
when it was recommended that
the Huston Farm be used. The
115-acre farm and buildings had
been bequeathed to the town by
Simon Huston upon the death of
his wife, Elizabeth.

The town paid $165 annu-
ally for the use of the farm until
Gorham came into possession
of the land after Mrs. Huston’s
death in 1865. Most of the labor
was performed by the paupers
who raised corn, grain, hay and
potatoes. Later the farm had an
overseer and he and his family
lived there. In the early 1920s,
Clifford Wescott and his family
lived there, also Al York and
his family.

Methodist Church
Built in 1880,
the educational
building was adjoined in
1964. The building covers
one of the earliest burying
plots in the town. In 1803
Methodists had petitioned
the General Court to be
incorporated into a society
separate from the
existing church.

R0

Photo courtesy of Gorham Historical Society

Located in the back field
of the farm is the site of the
Huston cemetery. The cem-
etery is enclosed by an old
board fence and, until recent-
ly, was overgrown with bushes
and trees. Richard Wing cut
the trees and bushes in the
burial plot, guaranteeing the
Huston family, who gave so
much to the town of Gorham, a
decent burial site. 4

This corn mill, owned by Elden Gamman, was behind what
is now Burger King and Goodwill, on Main Street extending

to Water Street. The wooden wheel, 100 feet in circumfer-

ence, was entirely handmade. Mr. Gamman was credited

with many inventions, including a machine for making but-

tonholes. His mill was later used as a carpet factory.

=0

Photo courtesy of Gorham Historical Society
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Photos courtesy of Gorham Savings Bank

Top: The original Gorham
Savings Bank.
Below: Toppan Robie,
first president of Gorham
Savings Bank

=0

— Business Profiles ——
GORHAM SAVINGS BANK

X\

Courtesy of the Gorham Savings Bank

@urbam Sabvings Bank’s
tharter was granted to
the town of Gorham in 1868.
Captain Toppan Robie was
elected as the first president
of Gorham Savings Bank, with
Joseph Ridlon as vice presi-
dent and John A. Waterman as
secretary/treasurer. The Bank
opened for business on Saturday
afternoons from 1 to 4 p.m. in a
brick building on School Street,
which was built in 1845 for the
Maine Mutual Fire Insurance
Company. The following week,
Gorham Savings Bank’s first
account was opened with a
deposit of ten cents. By 1896,
the bank was open from 8 a.m.
to noon and 1 to 4 p.m.

In 1904, it was voted to enter
into a lease with the Gorham
Real Estate Company for a part
of their new building for a term
of twenty years at the rental of

$135 per year, plus a sum not
to exceed $40 per year for heat.

On October 16, 1916, a fire
broke out that nearly destroyed
the building. Despite damage
from fire, the walls of the build-
ing remained standing. The
vault escaped harm, and busi-
ness was allowed to continue
despite the extensive damage.

In 1959 Gorham Savings
Bank moved to a new building
at 64 Main Street and in 1988
opened an Operations Center on
Wentworth Drive. In addition to
supporting operations, a commu-
nity room is available for free use
by local non-profit organizations.
This community room was dedi-
cated and named after Clarence
E. Carll, as he was president
of the bank when the tree farm
was purchased on which the
Operations Center stands.

In 2001, Gorham Savings

PHINNEY
LUMBER

XN\ —

Reprinted with permission from
www.phinneylumber.com

@aptain Jobn  Phinnep
arribed in Gorbam with his

family in 1736 and in doing so,

became Gorham’s first settlers.
Captain John led a long and
useful life in Gorham and was
the first of many generations of
Phinneys to deal in timber and
timberlands.

Samuel W. Phinney mar-
ried Eva Haynes in 1894 and
had three children, including a

Bank acquired Turner Barker
Insurance and began offering
investment services through
INVEST Financial, now known
as Gorham Financial Group.

In 2010 they opened their
tenth location in Falmouth.

son, Raymond. Sam loved dairy
farming, but Raymond didn’t.
To accommodate his only son,
Sam built a stationary sawmill at
our present location in 1928 and
soon turned this sawmill opera-
tion over to Raymond.

Raymond Phinney success-
fully ran the sawmill until his
retirement in 1970, at which
time his son, John Phinney,
purchased the business and
expanded the operation from
selling just lumber to offering a
complete line of building mate-
rials to retail customers.

John’s son, Michael, as well
as his brothers, Dana and Scot,
currently Phinney
Lumber (with a little help from
dad) and, after building a new

manage

store in 2003, are pleased to
continue the tradition of hav-
ing the Phinney family provide
Gorham and surrounding areas
with building material and fire-

wood needs. &
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C.E. CARLL
AGENCY

XXN\N—

Sherrie Fontaine (Excerpt

reprinted from Gorham Times,
12/10/2010)

€. Carll Agency, now part

of the Chalmers Insurance
Group, has had a lengthy his-
tory of serving past generations
of Gorham customers. Founded
in 1866 by H.R. Millett, the
company was later taken over by
C.E. Carll in thel900’s. Jason
Beever purchased the company
in 1994 and is the fourth gen-
eration of his family to manage
the business. Older customers
may associate the insurance
agency with the brick building
at the intersection of Routes
114 and 25, also known as the
Old Masonic Building. In fact,
the telephone pole in front of
the building bears a plaque and
American flag donated through
the Lion’s Club in memory of
Jane Beever, Jason’s mother and
longtime employee of C.E. Carll.
The agency relocated a few
years ago to 65A Main Street,
a building shared with Norway
Savings Bank. %

BARDEN’S DRUG
STORE
XN\ —
Phil Bartlett (Excerpt

reprinted from Gorham Times,
10/05/2001)

ichard  Warbden Dbegan

working in his father’s drug
store, Braden Drug Company, “as
soon as he was old enough to see
His father,
Nelson Barden, came to Gorham
in the winter of 1938 and bought
a pharmacy on the corner of Main
and South Streets, where the
Gorham House of Pizza if now.

over the counter.”

After graduating from Gorham
High School in 1944, Barden
went with friends to a mili-
tary recruiting office with the
intention of joining the Navy.
The recruiter instructed Barden
to walk towards an eye chart
and stop once he could read it.
When he stopped, Barden was
so close he could nearly touch
the chart. That was too close for
the Navy.

Instead of going to war, Barden
attended the
College of Pharmacy, as his
father had. When he graduated

in 1948, he was awarded a two-

Massachusetts

year assistantship at Purdue.
Back in Maine, his father had
been working alone and was
exhausted, so Barden post-
poned Purdue for a year to help
at the drug store. During that
year Barden met his wife-to-be,
Rosalie, and never did make it
to Purdue.

Barden worked for his father
until 1963, when the
ness was turned over to him.
In 1966 he joined forces with
Bill Rickards, a competitor who

busi-

owned a drug store across the
street. The two men opened a
new store, Gorham Pharmacy,
on Main Street. They opened a
second pharmacy in Standish in
1974. In 1977 Gorham Pharmacy
was sold to LaVerdiere’s. Barden
worked at that store for another
13 years. After a year or two
after he retired, Barden missed
his customers and went back
to working part time at the
Community Pharmacy. %

0’DONAL’S
NURSERY
XN\ —

Jeff O’Donal

id pou knotw there is ober

100 years of horticultural
history at O’Donal’s Nursery in
South Gorham?

Back in 1859, Thomas
Jackson started a liner nursery
called Forest City Nursery in the
Stroudwater section of Portland.
Jackson was internationally
known as a propagating special-
ist and his rooted cuttings and
seedlings were sold worldwide.
The Jackson homestead, which
still exists in the Stroudwater
neighborhood, holds satch-
els of receipts from Germany,
England, as well as the State
of California and other distant
locations. His 1800’s catalogs
promised delivery to Boston in
eight hours, and to New York
City in 24. A business card, pic-
tured above, of Thomas Jackson
shows a sales office on Vessey
Street in New York City that
was open from April 1 to June
1,1872.

Documentation exists show-

ing that his son, Herbert
Jackson, operated the company
in Portland, as late as 1892.
Historical investigation by Al
Black (now deceased), former
Maine State Horticulturist,
showed that the Jackson family
moved the nursery to its current
location in South Gorham some-
time around 1900. At that time,
the nursery changed its name to
The Jackson Nursery.

The Jackson family contin-
ued to operate the nursery until
1960, when Lena Jackson, the
widow of Robert Jackson, sold
it to Royce and Selma O’Donal.
The O’Donal family has oper-
ated the nursery ever since.

Throughout years of change,
one thing has always remained
constant: an experienced and
knowledgeable staff that grows
their own local products.

The long and interesting his-
tory of O’Donal’s Nursery con-
tinues. It recently bought the
rights to a remarkable product
line of historical horticultural
significance. In 2010, O’Donal’s
Nursery acquired the Barth
Hybrid line of daylilies, the lon-
gest continual, unbroken line of
daylily hybrids known to exist in
the world. &%
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BAXTER
MEMORIAL
LIBRARY

XN\N—

Excerpt taken from
www.baxter-memorial.lib.me.us

he  Waxter  Memorial

Librarp, built in 1908, was
the gift of James Phinney Baxter.
It is constructed of pink granite
and the interior is completed in
red oak. The Library currently
stands where the Baxter House
Museum once stood.

With the opening of a new
addition in February of 2003,
and the re-opening of the origi-
nal building in May of 2003, the
library has added considerable
space while blending the old
with the new in a complimen-
tary manner. The library con-
tinues to preserve the Baxter
family legacy in its collections,
including J.P. Baxter’s journals
and the Maine Collection, an
accumulation of Gorham his-
tory, Maine history, and books
written by local authors.

The Baxter Museum, boy-
hood home of James Phinney
Baxter, will open for the season
on June 2, from 10 a.m. to 1 p.m.
Summer hours are Tuesdays
and Thursdays from 10 a.m. to
1 p.m. during June, July and
August. The museum is located
at 67 South Street. Admission is
free but donations are welcome.
For more information, please

contact 839-3878. &%

NORTH GORHAM
PUBLIC LIBRARY

X\

Compiled by Karen DiDonato

@he Porth Gorbam Public
Library began in 1896
when the North Gorham Public
Library Association received a
gift of $600 from the Estate
of Joseph Walker of Portland,
also a chief benefactor of the
Walker Memorial Library in
Westbrook. Walker was a for-
mer business partner of Peter
Trickey, Sr., who, tradition says,

— Municipal ——

was North Gorham’s first librar-
ian. Contrary to this belief, the
first librarian to pen records was
15-year-old Marion Lucretia
Moses, later Mrs. Guy Wilson.
The small

housed in Forest Hall, served

library room,
patrons until 1918 when the
Library Association acquired
the Smith’s Brothers store,
which had been built next door.
Forest Hall seemed an unlikely
location for a library as the
adjoining room often served
as a movie theater, and until
1910, the basketball court for
Windham High School.

In 1975 the library room
in the Smith’s Bros. building
was lost to arson, but through
cooperation with the Town of
Gorham, the library was relo-
cated next to the fire station
on Standish Neck Road. The
re-establishment of a function-
ing library required hundreds of
hours of volunteer work and was
truly a community endeavor.

In 1997 the library celebrat-
ed its centennial when a con-
gratulatory Special Sentiment
from the 118th Legislature
was presented by Hon. Janice
E. Labrecque. A Centennial
History of the Library was read,
and the living past librarians
were presented. &%

SOUTH
WINDHAM
LIBRARY

X\

Adapted from “Fifiy Years of
Gorham” by Edna Dickey

be  South  PWindham

Library was founded in the
late 1920’s with the formation of
a Library Association. The Town
of Windham donated a small
hose-house that was no longer
used once the new fire station
was built. The community gave
$300 to buy books and cards. In
1935, the hose house was moved
across the river to the Gorham
side and an addition was built.
It was situated on land owned
by S.D. Warren Co. By the time
it opened, it had nearly 2,000
books. Despite the name, the
South Windham Library is a
Gorham library. &

RECOLLECTIONS
OF PUBLIC
SAFETY

A\ Y

Phil Bartlett (Excerpt
reprinted from Gorham Times,

11/07/2005)

Zjn 1895 fire wardens were
elected for the first time,
and a committee was established
to determine how to stretch the
water supply into the village.
Two years later, the wardens
were instructed by the Village
Corporation to organize a fire
department with firefighters to
be paid 25 cents per hour.

It was not until 1948 that for-
mal fire protection was provided
in White Rock.

For many years the Neal
Funeral Home (Now Dolby &
Dorr Funeral Chapel) had a red
phone that the Neal’s could use
to sound the alarm if a fire came

in. %

EARLY ROADS
— XX\

Lennie Cross (Excerpt
reprinted from Gorham Times,

09/27/2003)

rabel for the first arribals in
Gorham was most often by
foot; however, for long distances
over the rough trails, oxen, led
by the man of the household,
were used to pull carts or sleds.
The density of the forest limited
choices of passage, for much of
the land had yet to see an axe.
When the town of Gorham was
surveyed and lots organized, the
original plan was to place roads
around every four of the 30-acre
lots on the original town plan.
Main thoroughfares were to be
four rods (66 feet) wide while
secondary roads were to be two
rods wide (33 feet). A second
division called for roads around
every 200 acres, which would
have meant a road on three sides
of each lot. This would have
been an industrious undertaking
given the heavily wooded forest.
Many of these roads were never
cleared or opened.

Photo credit John Phinney

Gorham High School was converted into a fire station

in the late 1950’s.
a0

Photo courtesy of the Gorham Police Department

Gorham’s first police cruiser.

=20

Photo courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society

In the early 1900’s cars
started to appear on
Gorham’s roadways.

=0

The principal road running
northerly over Fort Hill was
named King Street, now Fort
Hill Road. This had once been
an Indian trail and remained
a primary route into New
Hampshire. The principal road
designated to run westerly was
named Queen Street, but was
never opened and should not be
confused with the current Queen
Street.

The main street in Gorham
Village was called Gorham
Street, which in 1743 ran as
far as Mosher’s Corner. It was
decided in 1743 to lay a road
from the end of Gorham Street to
Saccarappa Mills in Westbrook.

In October 1749 it was voted
to pay 30 pounds to the per-
son or persons who would clear
a passable road from Gorham
Corner to the Scarborough line,

Photo courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society

Charlotte Millett and her
father, Dr. Millett, ride in
first Stanley Steamer.

=0

a distance of five miles.

In 1762 a bridge was pro-
posed over the Presumpscot
River at Horsebeef Falls.

In July of 1777 it was possi-
ble to travel from Massachusetis
to Saco in a chaise, but it was
ill advised to travel to Buxton
by carriage. One of the first to
attempt this trip was Rev. Paul
Coffin of Charlestown, Mass.
with his bride Mary Gorham.
It took four hours to walk and
steady the chaise to reach
Buxton. The ride from Buxton to
Gorham was accomplished with
saddles for the gentlemen and
pillions or cushions attached the
back of the saddle for the ladies.
At this time no carriage had
traveled from Gorham to Buxton
for there was no road able to
accommodate such a vehicle. &
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What major events really
changed Gorham?

ben I was a poung girl

there were trolleys. The
way we travelled to Portland
and back was by trolley. When
they took out the trolleys it made
quite a change. Of course at
that time too, when I was a
young girl and a young woman,
groceries and meat and milk
were all delivered to the house
by the producer - the milkman
came, the meat man came, the
fish man came. Of course, all
of those things you now have to
go and buy. I suppose it made it
easier for the housewife.

—— Jibing ——
INTERVIEWS WITH LONGTIME GORHAM RESIDENTS

he Dutch Elm disease that
took all of those beautiful
trees out of Main Street and
South Street in the early 1930s.
The trees were gorgeous and the

Dutch Elm killed off all of them.

Frances Huse Boothbay

%

p 1932-33, the Wworst pears
%mr the Great Depression,
over 10,000 banks had failed
and over 2 billion in depos-
its had been lost. Under the
capable stewardship of Carrol
H. Wentworth, Gorham Savings
Bank closed its doors for only
48 hours. The bank provided
economic stability for the Town.
Not only did the bank not col-

— N\ —

What are your favorite
memories of Gorham?

What are the biggest chang-
es you’ve seen in Gorham?

What people influenced the
direction of the town?

‘'m gure my faborite memo-

riegs are of my childhood
here and the events that have
taken place in Gorham. I have
very fond memories of the 200th
anniversary celebration. There
was a big parade.

John Alden, 88 years old.
Born and still lives in Gorham.

»

p bdad owned Warden's
Rexall Brugstore where
Gorham House of Pizza now

stands. It was a hangout for high
school kids and kids and I was a

eople! When I moved to
Gorham in 1938, the pop-
ulation was about 2,200 and 1

think that included the cows and
the horses.

Dick Barden
&

@ranspnrtattun. We have
gone from 15-cent trol-
ley rides to automobiles. Worth
mentioning that the one constant
transportation matter since the
1970’s has been the issue of the
bypass.

QEarmII Wentworth. He was
the treasurer of Gorham
Savings Bank and a friend of
my dad’s. He was instrumental
in starting the housing develop-
ment in this town, namely the
Bank Development.

Dick Barden

%

quess some of the old fami-

lies are the ones who have
had the greatest impact, includ-
ing the Robie family and the
Phinney family.

Frances Huse Boothbay, lapcsli:i ithsurVived and prospered, “soda jerk” by the time I could Rodney Quinn John Alden
95 years old, moved to Gorham as did the town. see above the counter. I made -
when she was 10, now lives in - more banana splits than I'd like * ’
Westbrook. Rodney Quinn, 88 years old, to remember.”
born in Gorham, retired here in ~
1968, former élfalne Secretary Dick Barden, 85 years old. Has
of State. lived in Gorham for 73 years.
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Courtesy of the Gorham Police Department

CANAL STREET CALLER reported
a neighbor and her children
were throwing stones and
apples at her house, kids, dog,
cat and car. Neighbor was
warned that further problems
would wind up in court and
police did not want to deal with
these nuisance complaints.

MAIN STREET WOMAN reported
some men driving a vehicle
with Mass. plates were selling
linoleum under false pretenses.

GROUP OF MINORS were report-
ed having a party at Alden
Pond. Officers found 20-25

youths smoking, swearing and

drinking. Officers approached
the group and after some time
of “ridge running” apprehended
13 youths who were taken to
the police station. Their parents
were called and they were given
verbal reprimands.

CALLER WHO LIVED behind
the Esso Station on Rt. 237

reported that three boys who live
upstairs go out at all different
times and start up an old car and
race the engine to the annoyance
of others.

CALLER FROM WATER STREET
reported college boys were hav-
ing parties at the red house on
the corner of Glenwood and
Water and were making a lot of
noise, keeping his kids awake.

SOMETIME DURING the previous
night between 25 and 30 bar-
rels of gasoline was siphoned out
of a shovel at the Maine State
Highway Barn on Libby Avenue.
Subjects came in on foot and
used cans.

HARrDING ROAD CALLER who
was in the process of obtain-
ing a divorce, reported that her
husband took her mailbox and a
dog and threatened to shoot her
with a shotgun rather than let a
boarder in the home “have her.”
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magine that World War I

is a recent trauma, that the
Town of Gorham still has trol-
ley tracks down the center of
Main Street, and is still serviced
regularly by passenger trains.
Women, who just a few years
before, were gathering mainly
to roll bandages for “our boys,”
were beginning to seek out a
new way to be useful.

That is when word began to
spread that a national organi-
zation known as the General
Federation of Women’s Clubs
(formerly Sorosis Clubs, which
GFWC in 1890)
was making its muscle felt.
Women from this group raised
$4,880,000 in Liberty Bonds,
$90,000 for the Red Cross,
$55,106 for camp libraries, and
$89,788 for the YMCA during
the WWI years and Gorham

women wanted to be part of the

became

—— Jibing ——
85 YEARS OF THE GORHAM WOMAN’S CLUB

Nancy Taber

the first time.

Supporting and promoting
libraries has been a Woman’s
Club goal at national, state,
and local levels for many years.
By 1933, GFWC had founded
75% of America’s public librar-
ies, as well as pioneering the
idea of bookmobiles. Gorham
women were right in step with
the national movement, doing
their part over the years for
Baxter Memorial Library and the
branch libraries. For a number
of years, the club has assisted
a pre-school reading group by
providing small, colorful book
bags and books for each child
in the groups. In a related effort,
the club provides a school news-
paper called “Kind News” to all
classes whose teacher requests
it. Another club project that
inspires members is sponsor-
ship of high school students

Southern Maine.

To support these and other
projects, club members have
held many fundraisers includ-
ing a cookbook sold for several
years through L.L. Bean, selling
a woven lap robe which features
places of historical significance
in Gorham, and holding an
Annual Spring Luncheon, which
has become a popular rite of
spring for many local people and
their friends. Another project of
Gorham Woman’s Club was to
plant pink tulips in many loca-
tions around town as a commu-
nity beautification project and
to honor breast cancer patients.

Membership is an ongo-
ing challenge, as it is for most
service organizations, but the
giving of the scholarships is
an inspiration that keeps the
membership active. The club
welcomes all who would like

RECIPES FROM THE MID 1800S

X\

@oton Meeting Cake
Esther E. Wood

No town meeting was considered
complete without a town meet-
ing cake.

2 cups brown sugar

Y4 cup shortening

2 cups flour

1 % tsp nutmeg

1 tsp baking soda

1 egg, beaten

I cup sour milk (or add 1 tsp
vinegar to regular milk)

Mix sugar, shortening, flour and
nutmeg well. Reserve % cup of
mixture to be used for topping.
Dissolve the baking soda in the
milk. Add egg and milk to the
flour/sugar mix. Pour into a 10
by 4 inch pan. Sprinkle on top-
ping. Bake at 325 degrees for
25 minutes

Ffeather Cake

A cup each of sugar and milk,
the yolk of one egg beaten and
stirred to a cream with 1 tsp of
butter, a tsp of cream of tartar
and 1/2 tsp of baking soda sift-
ed with the flour, flavored with
lemon. Beat the whites of the egg
to a stiff froth, then slowly add 7
tsps of powdered sugar. Frost it.

&
Snotn - Ffritter

If it snows during the night or
morning hour, stir together, in
the morning, 2 cups milk, 3
cups flour, and a pinch of salt to
make a rather thick batter. Add
1 % gills (3/4 cups) of newly
fallen snow. Be sure to have
the fat “ready hot” at the time
you stir in the snow. Drop the
batter in the fat with a spoon.
These fritters are even preferred
to those made with eggs. (The

action. Thus, 85 years ago, the to the Maine Youth Leadership to participate in helping young * ammonia in the fresh snow acts
Gorham Woman’s Club met for ~ Conference at University of = people and the town. as a rising agent).
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one day in the third grade when
the superintendent came by the
school and asked what she was
doing in the third grade. The
teacher explained to the super-
intendent that she had started
school late, but then later in the
day the teacher told Grant that
if she could master fractions she
could go into the fourth grade.
Grant quickly became a fourth-
grader.

Grant remembers traveling to
Portland on electric cars with
her mother for flute lessons
when she was young. They would
walk across the field to Mosher
Road to take a car, which trav-
eled through Westbrook into
Portland. In 1931, the electric
cars were replaced with buses.

After spending ninth grade
at Frederick Robie, Grant and
five other classmates went to
the high school in Gorham. The
difficult, she
recalls, since they were joining
“youngsters who had all been
together their whole lives. I was
petrified the first time I had to
talk in front of the class.”

She got a ride to the high
school with her father in the

transition was

morning but then walked home
after school. She remembers the
day a police car stopped as she
was walking home. Ever mindful
of the lessons she had learned
from her mother, she refused a
ride because the officer was a
stranger.

Grant graduated from Gorham
High School with a class of
thirty-five students in 1933.
She went on to the Gorham
Normal School, graduating after
two years. Due to the Great
Depression, there were not a lot
of jobs available for new gradu-
ates. She substituted in Gorham
before becoming a full-time
teacher at the North Gorham
Normal School. One year she
had only eight students. While
teaching, Grant took
ning and weekend classes at
the Gorham Normal School to
achieve her master’s degree in
education.

From 1942 until 1957, Grant
taught fourth and fifth grade
at Frederick Robie School.
She then moved to Little Falls
School, where she taught third
grade until she retired in 1972.
Grant particularly enjoyed
teaching third grade, finding
that the children “were just
beginning to be people.”

eve-

CLASSIFIED ADVERTISEMENTS

Child Care

4 SEASONS Preschool and
Childcare, ages 2 to 10 yrs. Full
and Part time openings available.

Weekends also available.
Hours 7 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. 10
Hickory Lane Gorham, call Becki
Yahm 939-8282 or http://pre-
school4seasonswordpress.com

Ffor Rent

OFFICE for rent in Gorham
Village, parking for 1-2 vehicles.
Utilities included $250/mo. FMI,

329-4457.

Music Lessons

VOICE AND PIANO lessons at
my Gorham studio. BA in Music
Ed. Call Paul 839-4628.

As a teacher, Grant always
sought to help those students
who “didn’t have too many
advantages.” She refused to let
any child not have a chance.
Her mission was to convince
every child that he or she was
“as important as anyone in the
world.” She finds it very gratify-
ing when students tell her that
she’s changed their lives. %

Pet Sitting

Dog walks; overnight & daycare
for dogs under 40 lbs; cat care in
your home. Great references. Fully
insured. Lorie at 642-1071, loried2@
maine.rr.com, www.petsittingin-
maine.com.

Serbices
COLLEGE STUDENT looking for

part time summer work. Personable
and reliable. Lindsay 807-8177.

THE PAINT WIZARD. Painting,
wallpapering, power washing. resi-
dential/commercial, interior/exterior.
Fully insured, quality workmanship,
local references. Free estimates. Call
Larry Elliott 625-4009 or 289-0405.

INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR
PAINTING. Specializing in older
homes. Low rates, quality work. Free

estimates. Call Dave Hall, 929-4469.

IRISH CLEANING LADY looking
for some new jobs. I really enjoy
cleaning. Good ref. Free estimates.
Call Candy Leavitt, 839-2368.

Pard Sale

Sat, May 28, Mosher Rd., two miles
from Beals.

P

Photo courtesy of the Gorham Historical Socie

Fannie McDaniel
(1855-1949) uses her
old spinning wheel at her
home on Church Street.
She was said to be an
expert in the art of spin-
ning, which she exhibited
to the members of the

Woman’s Club of Gorham.
B0

Photo courtesy of the Gorham Historical Society

Coney Kneeland, driver

of W. 1. Bickford’s coal

and wood cart.

=0
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PAUL FRINSKO

In appreciation of your
35 years of outstanding
leadership and dedication
to Gorham Savings Bank.

Your friends at Gorham Savings Bank

Gorham A BREATH OF

SAVINGS BANK FRESH BANKING

MEMBER FDIC gorhamsavingsbank.com

Nicely Property Team
17C Railroad Ave Gorham, ME 04038

The Team That Gets Results

www.nicelypropertyteam.masiello.com
Craig Nicely Keith Nicely
Office: 207.222.1714 Office: 207.222.1722
Cell: 207.318.3693 Cell: 207.650.2832
craignicely@masiello.com keithnicely@masiello.com

Use your smart device to view
our properties currently on the market.

If You're Thinking of Listing Your Home....Give Us a Call!

HEAVY &% GRADE

Malne
Grown

Gladys,

there’s an easier way

to find out why your neighbor’s garden thrives...
It’s a visit to O’'Donal’s.

Smart gardeners know the best value for their money is to trust the experts
at O’Donal’s. Our friendly, knowledgeable staff will help you select the
plants that are best suited for your unique location and individual lifestyle.

Come to O’Donal’s for the hardiest, healthiest
selection of Maine Grown plants around.

Only 5 minutes from Maine Turnpike exit 46,
just follow Rte 22 west.

_.E Like us on Facebook

www.facebook.com/Odonals

Free Investment 101 Seminar... Join Us!

Are you ready to
learn more about
investing—but
aren’t sure where
to begin?

Presented by Darren Doughty, VP at Franklin Wednesday, June 8

Templeton Investments. He'll discuss: 6:00 pm - 7:00 pm
- The basics of stocks and bonds

Saco & Biddeford Savings
Operations Center
- The benefits of asset allocation 50 Industrial Park Rd, Saco
- Why investing NOW may help you meet your (in front of Hampton Inn)

unique financial goals

- The advantages of investing in mutual funds

Attendance is limited. Please respond
by May 20™. To attend, please

call Matt Cyr at 602-7319 or e-mail
A Franklin Templeton fund prospectus W/.// be d/str/but-ed during the m atthew.cyr@primevest.com and
workshop. Investors should carefully consider a fund's investment goals, risks,
charges and expenses before investing. Please carefully read the prospectus, leave your name, phone number and
which contains this and other information, before investing. This seminar has number of reservations.

been funded in whole or in part by Franklin Templeton Investments.

‘ Not FDIC Insured ‘ Not Bank Guaranteed ‘ May Lose Value ‘

‘ Not Insured by any Federal Government Agency ‘ Not a Bank Deposit ‘

‘5‘& g NS SACO SCARBOROUGH
, BIDDEFORD ~ SOUTH PORTLAND
/_\ WESTBROOK ~ OLD ORCHARD BEACH

888-978-PLAN (7526) www.shsavings.com




